
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC MEETING #278 

 
September 26, 2019 

10:00 a.m. 
MassMutual Center 

1277 Main Street 
Springfield, MA 







 

Page 1 of 12 
 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

  

Date/Time: September 12, 2019 – 10:00 a.m. 

Place:  Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
 101 Federal Street, 12th Floor  
 Boston, MA  02110 
  
Present:  Chair Cathy Judd-Stein 

Commissioner Eileen O’Brien 
Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 

 Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
 
Absent:  Commissioner Gayle Cameron 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Call to Order  
See transcript page 1 
 
10:00 a.m. Chair Cathy Judd-Stein called to order public meeting #276 of the Massachusetts 

Gaming Commission. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
See transcript pages  
 
10:00 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved to approve the minutes from the Commission 

meeting of August 15, 2019, subject to correction for typographical errors and 
other nonmaterial matters.  Commissioner Zuniga noted a change needed on page 
five from “junkets and Macau” to “junkets and not Macau.”  Commissioner 
Zuniga seconded the motion.   

  The motion passed 4 – 0 pending the edit. 
 
 
 

Time entries are linked to the 
corresponding section in the 
Commission meeting video.  

 

 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=7


 

Page 2 of 12 
 

Administrative Update 
See transcript pages 1 – 3  
 
10:05 a.m. General Update 
 Executive Director Ed Bedrosian reminded the Commission that the Gross 

Gaming Revenue (GGR) for the previous month would be released on Monday, 
September 16, 2019.  The Commission traditionally releases the GGR on the 15th 
of the month.  However as it falls on a Sunday, the figures will be released on 
Monday the 16th. 

 
 Mr. Bedrosian then provided an update on staffing, summarizing current open 

positions, and encouraged the public to apply at massgaming.com/jobs/ 
 
 Next, Mr. Bedrosian stated that Mark Vander Linden, Director of Research and 

Responsible Gaming, has been asked to serve on the International Advisory Panel 
of the Singapore National Council on Problem Gaming.  Mr. Bedrosian 
recognized this as a tribute to the work that Mr. Vander Linden and the 
Commission, in part, has been conducting on responsible gaming.  

 
Commissioner Zuniga noted that Singapore is a premier market in Asia from 
which the Commission can learn.  He asked that Mr. Vander Linden come back 
and comment at a later time, providing more details of the trip that he already 
took.  The Chair congratulated Mr. Vander Linden. 

 
Legal Division 
See transcript pages 3 - 32 
 
10:09 a.m. Region C – Motion for Reconsideration 
 The Chair stated that the Commission would be considering a petition filed with 

the Commission relative to the 2016 denial of the application for a gaming license 
submitted by Mass Gaming Entertainment (MG&E).  She then described the 
process that would be followed today. 

 
 Next, the Chair acknowledged receipt by the Commission of numerous written 

comments relative to Region C-related issues.  She noted that as the comments 
were primarily not directed at the narrow point being considered today, they were 
not included in the Commissioners’ packet. She stated that there would be an 
appropriate time for public comment and input on the subject of a gaming 
establishment in Region C in the future. 

 
 The Chair then asked to pause for a moment to remember the late Bill Carpenter, 

the former mayor of Brockton.  She then thanked Mayor Rodrigues of Brockton 
for attending today.  She later clarified what the outcome of the Commission’s 
vote on the petition would consist of, and set expectations for the parties. 

 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=129
https://massgaming.com/jobs/
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=395


 

Page 3 of 12 
 

10:14 a.m. Commissioner O’Brien clarified that as there were several submissions by 
MG&E’s counsel, particularly the one received by the Commission this week, and 
from her perspective going forward, anything beyond page five in that submission 
is beyond the scope of what the Commission is considering today. 

 
10:17 a.m. Catherine Blue, General Counsel, with Todd Grossman, Deputy General Counsel, 

introduced the questions presently before the Commission.  The first is whether 
the Commission can reconsider or reopen a previous decision relative to the 
award of a gaming license. The second is the question of what the appropriate 
grounds are upon which to base such a decision, and if the Commission should be 
able to do so.  Mr. Grossman then provided a slide presentation describing the 
threshold issue, the Commission’s authority, the discretion afforded by statute, 
and potential statutory limitation on the matter. 

  
10:32 a.m. Commissioner O’Brien and Mr. Grossman clarified for the record that the 

Commission is handling this matter procedurally, as there are no regulations for 
this process.   

 
 Mr. Grossman continued the presentation, reviewing the remaining slides 

covering examples of appropriate grounds for an administrative agency to 
reconsider a decision, and the issue of timeliness.  Mr. Grossman then concluded 
the presentation and welcomed any questions, to which there were none. 

 
10:45 a.m. Attorneys David Apfel and Robert Braceras from the firm of Goodwin Proctor 

representing MG&E, and Neil Bluhm, Chairman Rush Street Gaming/ MG&E 
presented to the Commission a slide presentation.  The first slide addressed the 
question of whether or not the Commission has the discretion to reconsider 
MG&E’s application.  The following slides described grounds for 
reconsideration, the changed circumstances since the initial decision to deny the 
application in 2016, reasonableness for reconsideration of the application, and a 
quote from former Commissioner Lloyd MacDonald.   The remaining slides 
depicted improvements to the Niagra Falls area after a Rush Street Gaming casino 
was erected and a new image of the casino proposed for the after a $700M+ 
investment. 

 
10:58 a.m. Commissioner O’Brien asked if there is something in the vote, the public record, 

or the decision in 2016 that Mr. Apfel would want to point to that would indicate 
why the Commission should reconsider MG&E’s Region C application.  Mr. 
Apfel noted his position on the role of the Mashpee Wampanoag tribe in the 
Commission’s denial.  There was then a discussion regarding the Mashpee 
Wampanoags’ pending bill currently in congress. 

 
11:11 a.m. Mr. Braceras stated that the reconsideration and granting of a license to MG&E 

would create jobs, acquire additional tax revenues for the Commonwealth, bring 
tax dollars from Rhode Island and Connecticut back to the Commonwealth, and 
revitalize Brockton.    

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=717
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=863
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=1785
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=2608
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=3328
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=4125


 

Page 4 of 12 
 

 
11:49 a.m. The Chair allowed Mayor Rodriguez of Brockton to speak and welcomed him on 

behalf of the Commission.  He stated that as Brockton has the same issues that 
any major city has, a casino could bring in tax revenues that will afford Brockton 
resources to benefit the community.   

 
 Mr. Apfel then concluded by stating a few points for the Commission to consider.  

First, he noted that further market research could be performed in the context of a 
robust reconsideration process before a determination is made whether or not to 
approve the reconsideration.  

 
 Second, he suggested that alternatives, including opening up a new process, are 

unreasonable because they cause additional delay of at least three years for any 
construction to begin on a casino. Reconsideration would give $85M to the 
Commonwealth immediately, and construction could start quickly, if not by the 
end of this year then in early 2020. 

 
 Lastly, Mr. Apfel asked the Commission to consider putting out an informal 

solicitation of interest to see if anybody else is interested and willing to commit.  
He noted the commitment that Mr. Bluhm has made over the course of the last 
five years.  Mr. Apfel stated that if no one responds, given enough time to do that, 
that would be an essential factor to consider before determining whether to 
reconsider MG&E's proposal. 

  
 There was discussion around this hybrid approach to reconsidering MG&E’s 

application by the Commission; the issues discussed included requesting public 
comment/solicitation of interest to apply for a Region C license and conducting a 
market analysis for any competitors. 

 
 Commissioner Zuniga stated that it is intriguing to split it and ask for additional 

comments; however, he expressed concern about time constraints for someone to 
put together a proposal.  He stated that the arguments made by MG&E are 
compelling, but they may actually support opening the Region C bidding process, 
rather than a reconsideration of just the one application.  Commissioner Stebbins 
agreed. 

  
12:06 p.m. Commissioner O’Brien moved that the Commission find that it has the discretion 

to reconsider the Commission’s decision denying MG&E’s January 2015 
application for a gaming license in Region C as outlined in the presentation made 
by Commission legal staff and further moved that after review of the materials 
submitted and the presentations made by Commission staff and counsel for 
MG&E, that sufficient grounds do not exist to support a reconsideration of the 
Commission’s decision denying MG&E’s January 2015 application for a gaming 
license in Region C.  Commissioner Stebbins seconded the motion. 

 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=6370
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=7390


 

Page 5 of 12 
 

 Mr. Apfel asked to make one last comment, which the Chair allowed.  He 
suggested that concerning Commissioner Zuniga’s statement, a solicitation of 
interest does not need to have a narrow time frame and that the Commission could 
open up a six-month window for any candidates to respond before foreclosing 
reconsideration of MG&E’s existing plan. 

 
 Mr. Bluhm expressed concern about his future involvement in the project, should 

the Commission deny MG&E’s request for reconsideration of their application. 
 
 Commissioner Zuniga stated that he feels there is a compelling argument for 

soliciting public comment now because closing the door on reconsideration may 
unnecessarily delay the process.   

 
 The motion passed 4 – 1, with Commissioner Zuniga dissenting. 
 
Ombudsman 
See transcript pages 32 – 40  
 
12:30 p.m. Encore Boston Harbor Quarterly Report 

Robert DeSalvio, President of Encore Boston Harbor and Jacqui Krum, Senior 
Vice President and General Counsel of Encore Boston Harbor reported on the 
activities surrounding Encore Boston Harbor’s opening in their Quarterly Report. 
 
Joe Delaney, Construction Project Oversight Manager, stated that Encore is 
making good progress in completing the items that were conditions of the final 
Operation Certificate.  He noted that the Commission is waiting for further 
documents and that he plans to meet individually with each commissioner before 
the 90-day period concludes, to provide an exact status.  Several of these issues 
are listed in a memo contained in the Commissioners’ Packet from the June 27th 
Commission meeting where the Commission directed the licensee to resolve all 
issues within 90 days of opening the casino. 

 
 Commissioner O’Brien asked if the issues would be resolved within 90 days.  Mr. 

DeSalvio answered in the affirmative. 
 
 Ms. Krum stated that Encore has a commitment tracker that contains thousands of 

items.  She noted that some of the items should be completed before the 90-day 
deadline.  However, they may need an extension to produce some of the 
paperwork to demonstrate that they have closed out all of those commitments. 

 
12:33 p.m. Mr. DeSalvio began a slide presentation.  He stated that there were no traffic 

issues upon Encore Boston Harbor’s opening.  As they approach their 90 days of 
being open, he finds that the casino traffic does not interfere with the commuter 
hour.  He also noted that night business is arriving at the casino later than 
anticipated, providing for no traffic overlap.   

 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=7898
https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Commissioners-Packet-6.27.19-1.pdf
https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Commissioners-Packet-6.27.19-1.pdf
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=8076


 

Page 6 of 12 
 

 Mr. DeSalvio noted efforts made to ensure repatriation from residents who 
otherwise were leaving Boston to visit casinos.  He also stated that foreign patrons 
are now arriving from overseas.  He stated that there are currently four business 
drivers.  The first driver is the accelerating hotel business.  The second is the 
introductory deals through the Encore website and online travel agencies.  The 
third is restaurants, which is making adjustments to match what the local market 
looks for, and the fourth is table games being extremely strong and continuing to 
grow.  Encore is currently adding more tables to the gaming floor.  He stated that 
slot business has been “soft” and they are making adjustments to the gaming floor 
to accommodate patrons.   

 
 The Commission reviewed slides of photos capturing the festivities of opening 

day.   
 
 Next, Mr. DeSalvio reported on Encore Boston Harbor’s construction schedule, 

stating that they now have only 91 items left on their list to complete.  He added 
that they started with a record in the thousands. 

 
 He stated that the construction of the daycare center is underway.  He anticipates 

that it will be completed in November to turn over to Encore’s operator, Action 
for Boston Community Development (ABCD).  He added that ABCD is looking 
to complete the project by the end of the year.  Ms. Krum stated that they are 
working with employees regarding their childcare needs and schedules. 

 
 Mr. DeSalvio reviewed contracts awarded to Women-owned Business Enterprises 

(WBEs) and Veteran-owned Business Enterprises (VBEs) for the construction 
phase.  Overall, they exceeded their goals. He stated that there was $263M worth 
of work performed during the construction phase.  Participation for the 
construction phase of these categories’ goals was also exceeded. 

 
 In terms of hiring, Mr. DeSalvio stated that there are currently 64 open positions 

remaining with a total of 4982 active employees onboard and 220 additional 
employees in the onboarding process. 

 
 Ms. Krum reviewed slides with the Commission.  She reported on Encore Boston 

Harbor’s progress with the license condition commitments, noting the status of 
several items.  She also described a survey that was conducted, entitled the “Great 
Place to Work” with favorable results submitted by employees.  She highlighted 
partnerships with organizations and other successful community outreach 
initiatives and highlighted community investments made, to such as raising 
money to support local nonprofits and donating $2.3M in 2019 for local charitable 
organizations. 

 
 Finally, Ms. Krum clarified for the Commission that the Board of Directors of 

https://bostonabcd.org/service_categories/children/


 

Page 7 of 12 
 

Wynn Resorts has selected with Matt Maddox's approval an executive coach for 
him. This individual has entered into a contract, and Mr. Maddox has started 
meeting with the executive coach. She added that it is going well. 

   
 
 
 
 
Legal Division, con’t. 
See transcript pages 40 – 45  
 
12:59 p.m. Initial Draft Versions of 205 CMR 134.01 and 134.06 Re: Licensing and 

Registration of Employees, Vendors, Junket Enterprises and 
Representatives, and Labor Organizations and Small Business Impact 
Statements 

 The Commission reviewed the initial draft version of 205 CMR 134.00: Licensing 
and Registration of Employees, Vendors, Junket Enterprises and Representatives, 
and Labor Organizations that described amendments to 134.01: Key Gaming 
Employee Licensees to add Junket representatives, whom are not employed by a 
gaming licensee or affiliate of the gaming licensee or a junket enterprise licensed 
as a gaming vendor, as Key Gaming Employees. Further, 205 CMR 134.06: 
Junket Enterprises and Junket Representatives would be added to the regulation to 
describe the scope of responsibility and compliance imposed upon the licensee to 
employ a junket enterprise or junket representative. 

 
 There is one additional amendment that staff plans to make to section 5(b) 

regarding marketing, where the licensees would be required to provide one large 
list to junkets that combines individuals from both the Exclusion list and the 
Voluntary Self-Exclusion (VSE) list.  This method would protect the privacy of 
individuals enrolled in the VSE program while ensuring they do not receive 
marketing. 

 
 Commissioner O’Brien asked if the privacy concerns surrounding this that were 

addressed in previous public meetings had been resolved.  Mr. Vander Linden 
explained that privacy concerns revolved mostly around the VSE list and that the 
solution drafted by Associate General Counsel Carrie Torrisi and the team is 
effective, as it combines both lists into one for non-marketing.  Commissioner 
O’Brien requested affirmation that this approach is not violating any 
nondisclosure provisions on the VSE list.  Ms. Torrisi stated that staff would 
confirm this in the process.  

 
1:14 p.m. Commissioner O’Brien moved that the Commission approve the small business 

impact statement for the amendment to 205 CMR 134.01 and the new regulation 
section 134.06 Licensing and Registration of Employees, Vendors, Junket 
Enterprises and Representatives, and Labor Organizations; as included in the 
Commissioners’ packet. Commissioner Stebbins seconded the motion. 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=9631
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2018/08/15/205cmr134.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2018/08/15/205cmr134.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2018/08/15/205cmr134.pdf
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=10571


 

Page 8 of 12 
 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
 Commissioner O’Brien further moved that the Commission approve the version of 

the amendment to 205 CMR 134.01 and the new regulation section 134.06: 
Licensing and Registration of Employees, Vendors, Junket Enterprises and 
Representatives, and Labor Organizations as included in the Commissioners’ 
packet, as amended at this meeting, and authorize the staff to take all steps 
necessary to begin the regulation promulgation process. 

 Commissioner Zuniga seconded the motion. 
 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
Research and Responsible Gaming 
See transcript pages 45 – 63  
 
1:56 p.m. MA Gaming Impact Cohort Study Wave 3 
 Mr. Vander Linden noted Responsible Gaming Education Week and described 

how it works.  Joining him is Dr. Rachel Volberg, who presented the 
Massachusetts Gambling Impact Cohort (MAGIC) Study: Analyses Across Three 
Waves.  Mr. Vander Linden summarized the study for the Commission. 

 
 Ms. Volberg stated that the three primary research goals of the MAGIC study are 

to determine the incidence of problem gambling, understand the stability and 
transitions associated with problem gambling, and to develop an etiological model 
of problem gambling.  She then reported the research study’s findings and 
presented slides that illustrated the background of the study and the processes 
implemented by the research team.   

 
2:35 p.m. Ms. Volberg discussed the study’s most important finding, which was a 

statistically significant increase in the proportion of participants in the study who 
had gambled at an out-of-state casino in the past year but were now gambling at a 
Massachusetts casino.  The percentage of patrons in the study who gambled out-
of-state decreased from about 33% to 22%.  She stated that this finding 
triangulates very well with information gathered from the Plainridge Park Casino 
(PPC) patron survey where she was able to ascertain that a very significant 
number of the people who were patronizing PPC in that first year actually would 
have spent their money gambling at an out-of-state casino if PPC had not opened.  
She added that this was corroborating evidence of the success in recapturing 
Massachusetts gambling dollars that were leaving Massachusetts and going 
elsewhere. 

 
3:13 p.m. Mr. Vander Linden concluded by stating that this research is contributing to a 

much larger study and group of studies of cohorts where the research team is in 
the process of developing low-risk gambling guidelines.  Creation of low-risk 
gambling guidelines is one of the team’s goals.  He also noted that GameSense 
provides guidance, influencing gamblers to do so in a way that is no harm to the 
individual, to their family, or the community. 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=10741
https://www.umass.edu/macohort/
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/MAGIC%20Wave%203%20Report_Final_2019-09-12.pdf
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/MAGIC%20Wave%203%20Report_Final_2019-09-12.pdf
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=13030
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=15379


 

Page 9 of 12 
 

 
Investigations and Enforcement Bureau (IEB) 
See transcript pages 63 – 84  
 
 Licensee Policies on “Switching” Jackpots 
 The Investigations and Enforcement Bureau’s Gaming Agents Division has been 

surveilling incidents of “switching,” which is when a slot machine player switches 
seats after winning a jackpot of $1200 or more with a friend, accomplice or 
another player.  This act is illegal and hinders the enforcement of MGL Chapter 
23K Section 51 and 205 CMR 133.06 (7)(a) because it allows players, who may 
be on the Self Exclusion List or Voluntary Self Exclusion list or owe monies 
directly to the Massachusetts Department of Revenue or US Government, to 
improperly collect winnings. 

 
3:27 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins stated that he appreciates that the IEB team has 

confronted this issue and worked with gaming agents and licenses to raise 
awareness of it.  He added that this is just a reminder of how the Commission is 
trying to help protect some vulnerable patrons as well as meet some of its 
statutory obligations. 

 
 Reporting this issue to the Commission was Bruce Band, IEB Assistant Director / 

Gaming Agents Division Chief, Burke Cain, Field Manager of Gaming 
Operations / Deputy Gaming Agent Division Chief, and Valeriya Trendafilova, 
Supervising Gaming Agent at Encore Boston Harbor.  Mr. Band stated that this 
topic is unique to Massachusetts and that Mr. Cain and Ms. Trendafilova are the 
pioneers in Massachusetts to find some of the inconsistencies with the jackpots. 

 
 Mr. Cain and Ms. Trendafilova led the Commission through a PowerPoint 

presentation that described the slot machine jackpot process, the review of 2210 
jackpots that was conducted by gaming agents, tracked incidents of “switching,” 
and surveillance stills of individuals caught in the act of “switching.”     

 
 Property surveillance will now review footage of individuals who win a jackpot of 

$1200 or more to determine if “switching” occurred and report back to the slot 
attendant.  This can be done quickly and should not pose an inconvenience to the 
patron.  

 
 The IEB also reminded licensees via a memo submitted in the Commissioners’ 

packet to abide by the Commission’s regulations and provide assistance to help 
prevent VSE list participants from gaming and evasion by players seeking to 
avoid paying any outstanding taxes or penalties.   

  
3:58 p.m. Modification of Massachusetts Supplemental Form 

Karen Wells, IEB Director, proposed that the IEB add questions to the 
Massachusetts Supplemental license application form relative to settlement 
agreements, and that capture instances of sexual harassment, misconduct, or 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleII/Chapter23K/Section51
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleII/Chapter23K/Section51
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2019/06/04/jud-lib-205cmr133.pdf
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=15518
https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Commissioners-Packet-9.12.19.pdf
https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Commissioners-Packet-9.12.19.pdf
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=17421


 

Page 10 of 12 
 

unlawful discrimination.  There was discussion around different ways to edit the 
form. 
 
The Commission agreed to eliminate question #19 from the form, as it is too 
broad.  The Commission then decided to add at the end of question #21 (to now 
become question #20) after the word “qualification,” “including any other 
misconduct not disclosed above.”  

 
4:25 p.m. Commissioner O’Brien moved that the Commission approve the modifications to 

the Massachusetts Supplemental Form as described by Commission staff, as 
included in the Commission packet.  Also, as further amended to strike proposed 
question #19 and add to the end of question #21, the phrase including any other 
misconduct not disclosed above.  Commissioner Zuniga seconded the motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
  

 Modification of Criminal History Section in License/Registration Application 
Forms  

 Next, Ms. Wells requested that the Commission approve clarified language in the 
Gaming License application that would make it easier for individuals to complete 
and understand.   She noted a suggestion that was made to add to the front of the 
License Management System (LMS) webpage, language that states the applicant 
should seek assistance from the licensee in their Human Resources office for help 
in filling out the form. 

 
 Commissioner Zuniga asked if the Commission can state on the form or LMS that 

there is someone in the Licensing Division that applicants can speak to with any 
questions, perhaps listing Mary Pulgarin, Licensing Specialist, as a resource who 
is bilingual.  Ms. Wells replied that she would check to make sure this 
information is posted and agreed that the licensing specialists would be a useful 
resource for applicants, adding that they provide feedback on the process as well.  

 
4:37 p.m. Commissioner O’Brien moved that the Commission approve the modifications to 

the Criminal History Section in the License/ Application forms as described by 
Commission staff today and as included in the Commissioners’ packet.  
Commissioner Zuniga seconded the motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
  
Plainridge Park Casino License Renewal Process Discussion 
See transcript pages 84 - 87 
 
4:41 p.m. In light of Plainridge Park Casino’s license expiration on June 24, 2020, Mr. 

Grossman provided a brief overview of the agenda item to be discussed further at 
the September 26th Commission meeting in Springfield, which is a proposed 
policy for the renewal of a gaming license for Category 1 and Category 2 
licensees.  There was a brief discussion around the statutory renewal provisions 
that require the Commission to establish procedures for this process. 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=19004
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=19735
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=19958


 

Page 11 of 12 
 

 
 Mr. Grossman outlined three areas to be initially addressed when creating a 

license renewal scheme. The first is the question of fee assessment by the 
Commission.  The second is the question of whether or not the Commission 
would be inclined to adjust the renewal periods.  The third area of concern is 
types of issues the Commission would be interested in exploring as part of the 
renewal process.  Finally, any problems with the statute that would require 
legislative updating should be addressed. 

 
 
Commissioners’ Updates 
See transcript page 87 
 
4:53 p.m. There were no Commissioners’ updates. 
 
4:54 p.m. With no further business, Commissioner Stebbins moved to adjourn the meeting.  

The motion was seconded. 
  The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
       

List of Documents and Other Items Used 
 

1. Notice of Meeting and Agenda dated September 12, 2019 
2. Draft Commission Meeting Minutes dated August 15, 2019 
3. PowerPoint presentation – Region C Reconsideration dated September 2019 
4. PowerPoint presentation – Mass Gaming & Entertainment: Request for Reconsideration 

of Licensing Decision 
5. PowerPoint presentation - Gaming Market Assessment: Brockton Fairgrounds Casino 
6. Letter re: Mass Gaming & Entertainment LLC and Region C dated August 14, 2019 
7. Letter re: Response to Request for Public Comments on Mass Gaming & Entertainment 

LLC’s Motion for Reconsideration of Region C License Decision dated September 6, 
2019 

8. Decision Denying a License to Operate a Category 1 Gaming Establishment in Region C 
dated August 11, 2016 

9. Memo Re: Junkets dated September 5, 2019 
10. Regulation Review Checklist for 205 CMR 134.01 
11. Draft Regulation 205 CMR 134.01 
12. Regulation Review Checklist for 205 CMR 134.06 
13. Draft Regulation 205 CMR 134.06 
14. Draft Small Business Impact Statement for 205 CMR 134.01 and 134.06 
15. PowerPoint Presentation: Encore Boston Harbor Quarterly Report dated September 12, 

2019 
16. Encore Boston Harbor Monitoring of Project Construction and Licensee Requirements as 

of June 30, 2019 
17. Memo re: Renewal of a Gaming License 
18. Memo re: “Switching” Enforcement and Regulations 

https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=20654
https://youtu.be/gsK4xaFMctE?t=20682


 

Page 12 of 12 
 

19. PowerPoint Presentation: Taxable Jackpot “Switching” Between Patrons 
20. Massachusetts Supplemental Form 
21. Civil, Criminal and Investigatory Proceedings questionnaire form 
22. MAGIC Study Wave 3 Presentation 
23. MAGIC Wave 3 Report dated June 28, 2019 
24. MG&E Presentation to the Massachusetts Gaming Commission 

 
/s/ Catherine Blue 

     Assistant Secretary 



 
 

 
 

 

TO: Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair 
 Gayle Cameron, Commissioner 
 Eileen O’Brien, Commissioner 
 Bruce Stebbins, Commissioner 
 Enrique Zuniga, Commissioner 
 
FROM:  Bill Curtis, Licensing Manager 
 
DATE: September 23rd, 2019 
 
RE: Gaming Beverage License Amendment – MGM Springfield VIP Lounge 
              
 
SUMMARY 
 
The attached amendment request from Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC dba MGM Springfield is 
being presented for consideration and vote.   

 
The amendment request is as follows: 

 
• Located off the hotel lobby is an alcoholic beverage and food dispensing area for use by 

VIP guests. Starbucks was formerly located in this space and has since closed. 
Permission is being requested to allow alcoholic beverages to be served in this space by a 
VIP Lounge Server via the Smart Bar located in the back of the house. This employee 
will be registered as a Service Employee. The alcoholic beverages will be stored in a 
designated area in the back of the house (represented in blue on the attached floor plan).  
If approved, this will bring MGM Springfield’s alcoholic beverage licensed areas to a 
total of 24. 

 
  

















Q2 2019 Report

Massachusetts Gaming Commission

September 26, 2019



FIRST ANNIVERSARY

AUGUST 24,  2019



First Anniversary 

3



First Anniversary 

4



First Anniversary 

5

Ice Rink



First Anniversary 

6

Cal Mare Brunch

Food Truck Fridays

Casino Bar

$26,000 Indian Side Car cocktail



First Anniversary 

7

Stadium gamingRed Sox partnership

Line run bus service



First Anniversary 

8

ONE-derful Celebration: Saturday, August 24



First Anniversary

9



First Anniversary

10



REVENUE,  TAXES,  

LOT TERY & COMPLIANCE



Q2 2019 Gaming Revenue & Taxes

12

Month Gaming Revenue MA Taxes

April $21,818,086 $5,454,522

May $22,285,566 $5,571,391

June $19,954,469 $4,988,617

TOTAL $64,058,121 $16,014,530



Lottery

13

Month Lottery Sales at MGM Springfield

April $100,280

May $91,759

June $170,942



Jackpots

14

Hong Mu drove away with a brand-new Cadillac XT4.

Guest walked away with $2,500 in
Promotional Chips.

"Winners Celebration" Grand Prize Winner
received $10,000 in FREEPLAY to enjoy.

Grand prize winner of Cold Hard Cash 
drawing walked away with $20,000.



Compliance

15

Month

Minors intercepted in 
Gaming Area and 

prevented from Gaming
(% of visitation)

Minors intercepted 
gaming

(% of visitation)

Minors intercepted 
consuming alcohol

(% of visitation)

April 113(0.025%) 10(0.002%) 1(0.0002%)

May 158(0.032%) 11(0.002%) 2(0.0004%)

June 179 (0.039%) 14(0.003%) 3(0.0007%)



SPEND UPDATE 



Q2 2019 Operating Spend

17



MBE Spotlight

18



MBE Spotlight

19



MBE Spotlight

20

• Began providing MGM Springfield MRO products in June 2018.

• Services MGM's national Grainger contract

• Services MGM's national FilterWorks contract

• Recently expanded to support MGM National Harbor

• Currently working with additional MGM properties

• Nominated by MGM for GNEMSDC Supplier of the Year Award

2019 GNEMSDC Annual Expo hosted by MGM Springfield



Q2 2019 Operating Spend

21



Vendor Outreach

22

Date Event Location

4/11/2019 J. Polep Food Show West Springfield, MA

4/24/2019 GNEMSDC Annual Meeting Webinar

4/30/2019 PFG Food Show West Springfield, MA

5/21/2019 Holyoke Chamber Meeting Holyoke, MA

6/5/2019 GNEMSDC Matchmaking Event Boston, MA

J. Polep Food Show



EMPLOYMENT



Employee Stories

24



Progress on Hiring Goals

25

*Represents 2,054 active employees as of 06/30/2019 (Does not include Campus, Tenants, Vendors)



Employment Numbers

26

Employees Full-Time Part-Time

Totals 2,054 1,563 491

% of Total 100% 76.1% 23.9%



2019 Q2 Recruitment Efforts

27

• Student Tours: UMASS Amherst, Manchester CC, LaSalle University, HCC Culinary

• Mock Interviews: Dress for Success, TRAIN Culinary Program (HCC)

• Career Fairs/Workshops: 
• MassHire Holyoke Hot Jobs
• Urban League of Greater Hartford
• Western New England University
• East Springfield Neighborhood Council Fair
• ROCA



Employee Stories

28



Employee Stories

29



Employee Stories

30



Employee Stories

31



Opportunities: MGMSpringfield.com

32



MARKETING,  EVENTS &

ENTERTAINMENT



Marketing Calendar Highlights

34

April Promotions May Promotions June Promotions



Community Engagement

35

• Bowls for Kids Sake
• Springfield Dragon Boat Race
• Northampton Pride Festival



Meetings & Groups

36



Plaza & Armory Activations

37



Entertainment & Nightlife

38

• Cher
• Murphy's Boxing
• Rob Gronkowski Birthday
• Terry Fator
• Air Supply



Upcoming Entertainment Calendar – October 2019

39

Date Event Venue

10/4/2019 Thunder From Down Under Aria Ballroom

10/6/2019 Patriots Parties on the Plaza Armory Square

10/11 - 10/12/2019 ROAR! - Leonard Ouzts Armory

10/12/2019
ROAR! - Roger Howarth, Michael Easton & Rebecca 
Budig

Armory

10/13/2019 Jason Bishop: Straight Up Magic Armory

10/18/2019 Smokey Robinson Symphony Hall

10/21/2019 Patriots Parties on the Plaza Armory Square

10/24 - 10/26/2019 ROAR! - Corey Rodrigues Armory

10/25/2019 Family Feud Live Symphony Hall

10/25 - 11/26/2019 ROAR! - Corey Rodrigues Armory

10/27/2019 ROAR! - Righteous & Ratchet Armory

10/27/2019 Patriots Parties on the Plaza Armory Square



Upcoming Entertainment Calendar – November 2019

40

Date Event Location

11/3/2019 ROAR! - Joe Dombrowski Armory

11/7 - 11/8/2019 ROAR! - Mark Normand Armory

11/8/2019 Slayer & Primus MMC

11/9/2019 Funny As Ish Tour: Mike Epps MMC

11/9/2019 Michael Carbonaro Live Symphony Hall

11/14 - 11/16/2019 ROAR! - Donnell Rawlings Armory

11/21/2019 Brian Setzer Orchestra Christmas Rocks Symphony Hall

TBD MGM Tree Lighting Ceremony Armory Square

TBD MGM Ice Rink Grand Opening Armory Square



Upcoming Entertainment Calendar – December 2019

41

Date Event Location

12/5 - 12/7/2019 ROAR! - Ryan Niemiller Armory

12/7/2019 Lewis Black Aria Ballroom

12/19 - 12/21/2019 ROAR! - Matt Braunger Armory

12/26 - 12/28/2019 ROAR! - Jared Freid Armory

12/29 - 12/31/2019 ROAR! - Jamie Kennedy Armory

12/14 - 12/16/2019 ROAR! - Donnell Rawlings Armory

All Month MGM Ice Rink Plaza



ECONOMIC IMPACT &

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT



 

 

 

 

 



Future Development Update

43

• Residential Development Update
• Wahlburgers
• Armory Plans
• VIP Lounge
• Sports Wagering



THANK YOU



Economic and Fiscal Research Agenda: 
Major Activities and  

Recent Springfield Research 

Dr. Mark Melnik, Director  
Economic and Public Policy Research 

UMass Donahue Institute 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Goals of the Economic Research 

• Measure and determine economic and fiscal 
impacts of casino facilities at the local, 
regional, and state level: 
– Business dynamics 
– Labor market conditions 
– Government finance 
– Real estate trends  
– Other issues 

Primary 
and 
secondary 
data 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Economic & 
Community Impacts 

Casino Industry 
Impacts 

Analytical Framework 
Economic and Fiscal Research 

Special Topics 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Analytical Framework 

Economic and Fiscal Research 

Economic & Community 
Impacts 

• Local Business Indicators 
• Resident Indicators 
• Labor Force Indicators 
• Real Estate & Housing 
• Community Comparisons 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Analytical Framework 

Economic and Fiscal Research 

Casino Industry Impacts 
• Casino Workforce 
• Casino Operating & 

Construction Spending 
• Patrons 
• Government & Fiscal Impacts 

(GGR; HSC Payments) 
• Lottery 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Analytical Framework 

Economic and Fiscal Research 

Special Topics 
• Tourism & impacted live 

entertainment venues 
• Impacts on small businesses 
• Workforce development & job quality 
• Sports betting 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Phases of Economic Analysis 

• Baseline analyses 
– Tracking economic and fiscal conditions before 

gaming facilities 
• Development/Construction 

– Measuring impacts as construction occurs at each 
gaming facility 

• Operations 
– Measuring and monitoring impacts from 

operations of gaming facilities 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Measuring Impacts Geographically 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Measuring Impacts Geographically 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Measuring Impacts Geographically 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Economic and Fiscal Research:  

Springfield 

Economic and Fiscal 
Research 

Host 
Community 

Profiles 

Real Estate 

Matched 
Community 

Comparisons 

Patron 
Survey Operation 

Impacts 

Construction 
Impacts 

Lottery 
Impacts 

Government 
Fiscal 

Impacts 

New 
Employee 

Survey 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Economic and Fiscal Research:  

Springfield 

Economic and Fiscal 
Research 

Host 
Community 

Profiles 

Real Estate 

Matched 
Community 

Comparisons 

Patron 
Survey Operation 

Impacts 

Construction 
Impacts 

Lottery 
Impacts 

Government 
Fiscal 

Impacts 

New 
Employee 

Survey 



ECONOMIC & FISCAL IMPACTS: 
RECENT SPRINGFIELD RESEARCH 



Real Estate Impacts of the 
MGM Springfield Casino 

Dr. Henry Renski 
University of Massachusetts Amherst 

 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Study Purpose & Scope 

Document changes in real estate market following the licensing of 
MGM Springfield in 2014 through 2018 

• Too soon to measure impacts post-opening for some measures 
 

Two major components 
1. Residential Properties (Number of sales, price, rents) 
2. Commercial/Industrial Properties (Inventory, vacancy, lease rates) 

 

Analysis of secondary data and stakeholder interviewers 
• Springfield Housing, Regional Planning Authority, Community Advocates  

 

Before-After / Comparative Approach 
• Compare host and surrounding communities to rest of 

Hampden/Hampshire counties and the state as a whole 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Caveats 

Timing lag in key 
data sources 
 

Casino opened 
relatively 
recently 
 

Difficult to 
distinguish MGM 
impacts from 
other activities 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Real Estate Impacts in Context  

• Greater Springfield is experiencing a strengthening real estate 
market associated with economic recovery and more robust 
economic conditions in the state. 
– Rising rents, sales prices, increased sales, jobs growth 

 

• Growth also creates challenges, such as tighter housing 
market conditions that impact vulnerable populations.  
– Key informants from Springfield are observing increased pressure in 

the housing market, rising rental costs, and more evictions 
– Although not attributing all the changes to the Casino  

 

• We are noting these concerns and will continue to track these 
issues to fully understand the effect expanded gambling has 
on residents in the Greater Springfield community. 
 
 

 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Single-Family Home Sales 

before and after license was awarded 

2012 and 2013 2017 and 2018 

Source: MLS 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Condominium Sales 

before and after license was awarded 

2012 and 2013 2017 and 2018 

Source: MLS 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Multi-Family Sales 

before and after license was awarded 

2012 and 2013 2017 and 2018 

Source: MLS 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  Residential Impacts 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings: Home Sales 

Recent increase in single-family home sales, 
but consistent with broader trends 

Single-Family Home Sales 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings: Home Sales 

Condominium sales flat 

Condominium Sales 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings: Home Sales 

Notable increase in multi-family home sales 

Multi-Family Building Sales 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings: Home Sale Prices 

MGM had little impact on 
single-family home sale prices 

Single-Family Home Sale Prices 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Home Sale Prices 
MGM had little impact 

on condominium prices 

 
 

Condominium Sale Prices 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Home Sales Prices 

Prices for multi-family buildings rising, 
following pre-award and regional trends 

 
 

Multi-Family Building Sale Prices 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Rental Rates 

Rents rose following announcement,  
but consistent with area trends 

Estimated Median Monthly Rents 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Rising rents 

“We have seen some upward pressure on the housing market […] but it is 
impossible for me to say how much of that is attributable to the casino [...] 
there have been so many development projects going on here. The casino 
is one high profile one among several.” 
—Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of Springfield 
 
“In 2013, you could get a 2-3 bedroom for $950. Now you’re looking at 
$1,400-$1,600.”  
—Rose Webster-Smith, Lead Community Organizer, Springfield No One 
Leaves 
 
“You can still buy a house for really affordable prices, but rentals are really 
high.”  
—Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer 
Valley Planning Commission  
 
 
 

 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Speculation 

“We’ve had some more outside investors coming in, buying a lot of multi-
family housing and raising rents. And there is a feeling that it is speculative 
and is likely tied to the casino.” 
—Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of Springfield 
 
“…there is a lot of speculative buying with the hope of getting high rents. 
But then they realize, they really can’t get those rents. […] They are still 
holding, sitting on them and waiting to see if that is still to come...” 
—Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of Springfield 
 
“I am aware of some speculation. You can see the block right across from 
MGM, there is a lot of waiting and hoping that ‘we are going to sell for 
more’[…] people are waiting thinking they are going to make a mint.”  
—Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer 
Valley Planning Commission  
 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Evictions and displacement 

“It is difficult to say whether it’s the result of the casino or 
not but there has definitely been an uptick in evictions […] 
I’ve been keeping track of the number of cases going to 
housing court versus district court in Springfield, and the 
number of cases overall is climbing.” 
—Liz Bewsee, Housing and Economic Justice Organizer, Arise 
for Social Justice 
 
“[…] there is a lot of concern on city council about 
displacement but there is not much they can do about it at 
this point because the market is coming in and renovating 
properties and they are not protected.” 
—Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land 
use, Pioneer Valley Planning Commission  
 

 
 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  Commercial Impacts 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings: Commercial and Industrial Buildings 

Slight growth in the number  
and size of commercial and industrial buildings 

Change in Commercial Rentable Building Area since 2008   



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial 

Slight growth in the number  
and size of commercial and industrial buildings 

Change in Industrial Rentable Building Area since 2008   



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial 

Commercial vacancy rates have fallen, 
in line with statewide and regional trends 

Commercial Vacancy Rates 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial 

Little evidence of a sustained rise or drop in 
office lease rates 

Average Lease Rates Office Commercial Space 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial 

Little evidence of a sustained rise or drop in 
non-office commercial lease rates 

Average Lease Rates Non-Office Commercial Space 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

New businesses 

“MGM has had some impact on retail... There are a couple of 
restaurants that relocated downtown waiting for the casino to 
open.”  
 
“Businesses aren’t really thriving outside of that casino district […] 
My guess is that maybe in the summer time they may start coming 
away from the casino more toward metro downtown to the 
entertainment district.”  
 
—Denise Jordan, Executive Director, Springfield Housing Authority 

 
 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Increased foot traffic 

“I have seen increased foot traffic around the venue and it 
does seem that there is spillover into downtown. How far? I 
can’t say. […] There are more [people] around on main street 
in the evenings.”  
––Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of 
Springfield 
 
“We were making lunch plans with people […] and they were 
saying, ‘Where can we go where there’s isn’t a line anymore? 
There never used to be lines in Springfield.’ And the downtown 
in the evenings is also much livelier.”  
––Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land 
use, Pioneer Valley Planning Commission  
 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Vibrancy and quality of life 

“MGM Springfield has absolutely had a direct effect in 
the city of Springfield as it has catalyzed […]  some 
major improvements—bike lanes, better signage, and 
sidewalks—in the downtown.”  
––Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment 
and land use, Pioneer Valley Planning Commission  
 
 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Conclusions 

Thus far, MGM has had a limited direct impact 
on the residential real estate market in 
Springfield and surrounding communities 
• Only a few months of post-opening data available 
• Key informants raised concerns of speculative buying as 

well as rising rents and sales - but difficult to discern from 
general recovery 

• Expanded tax base, new jobs, and place branding may 
yet have a long-term impact on the real estate market 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Conclusions 

MGM Springfield has a major footprint in 
downtown Springfield, but spin-off commercial 
development remains limited 

• New restaurants, area improvements, increased 
foot traffic 

• Thus far, limited to area immediately adjacent to 
Casino 

 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Thank you! 

Additional questions or comments please email: 
hrenski@umass.edu  

The UMass research team would like to extend a special thanks to the key informants 
from Springfield who agreed to take the time to speak with us about the impacts MGM 
Springfield has had on housing and real estate in the community. 
 

Interviews were conducted with Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of 
Springfield; Liz Bewsee, Housing and Economic Justice Organizer, Arise for Social 
Justice; Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer Valley 
Planning Commission; Rose Webster-Smith, Lead Community Organizer, Springfield No 
One Leaves; and Denise Jordan, Executive Director, Springfield Housing Authority. 

mailto:hrenski@umass.edu


 
 

Real Estate Impacts of MGM Springfield 
in Springfield and Surrounding 
Communities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 3, 2019 
 

 
Henry Renski, PhD  
Associate Professor  
UMass Center for Economic Development  
University of Massachusetts Amherst 
 
Thomas Peake 
Senior Research Analyst 
UMass Donahue Institute, Economic and Public Policy Research Group  
 
Andrew L. Hall 
Senior Research Analyst 
UMass Donahue Institute, Economic and Public Policy Research Group 
 
Denis McAuliffe 
Research Assistant 
UMass Donahue Institute, Economic and Public Policy Research Group 
 
Jonathan Astor 
Research Assistant 
UMass Donahue Institute, Economic and Public Policy Research Group 
 
 



Page | i  
 

Acknowledgements 

Support for this study came from the Massachusetts Gaming Commission under ISA MGC10500003UMS15A 
establishing the Social and Economic Impacts of Gambling in Massachusetts study. This multi-year project 
was competitively bid via the Massachusetts Gaming Commission Request for Response (MGC-RA-2012) for 
Research Services and awarded to the University of Massachusetts Amherst in April 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED CITATION:  
Renski, H., Peake, T., Hall, A., McAuliffe, D., & Astor, J. (2019). Real Estate Impacts of MGM Springfield in 
Springfield and Surrounding Communities. Amherst, MA: University of Massachusetts Donahue Institute, 
Economic and Public Policy Research Group. 
 

A PDF OF THIS REPORT CAN BE DOWNLOADED AT: www.umass.edu/seigma

http://www.umass.edu/seigma


Page | ii  
 

Table of Contents 
 
Acknowledgements ............................................................................................................................................. i 

List of Tables ...................................................................................................................................................... iii 

List of Figures ..................................................................................................................................................... iii 

Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................................... iv 

Real Estate Conditions in Springfield: Initial Impacts ......................................................................................... 1 

Residential Real Estate ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

Residential Property Sales .............................................................................................................................. 3 

Impacts on Residential Property Sales ....................................................................................................... 3 

Impacts on Median Sales Price of Residential Properties .......................................................................... 8 

The Residential Rental Market ..................................................................................................................... 11 

Residential Rent Prices over Time ............................................................................................................ 13 

Commercial and Industrial Real Estate ............................................................................................................. 17 

Inventory .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

Vacancy and Absorption ........................................................................................................................... 22 

Lease Rates ............................................................................................................................................... 27 

Conclusion ........................................................................................................................................................ 32 

 

  



Page | iii  
 

List of Tables 
 
Table 1. Residential Housing Sales Summary, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 .......... 11 
Table 2. Real Median Rents (2018 Dollars), 2008/12 and 2013/17 ................................................................. 12 
Table 3. Vacancy Rates, 2008/12 and 2013/17 ................................................................................................ 13 
Table 4. Commercial Inventory, Massachusetts, Springfield, and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 ..... 21 
Table 5. Industrial Inventory, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 .................................... 22 
Table 6. Commercial Vacancy and Absorption, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 ........ 25 
Table 7. Industrial Vacancy and Absorption, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 ............ 26 
Table 8. Valassis Vacancy Rates, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 ............................... 27 
Table 9. Commercial and Industrial Lease Rates, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 ..... 31 
 

List of Figures 
 
Figure 1. Massachusetts Host and Surrounding Communities........................................................................... 2 
Figure 2. Number of Residential Property Sales by Type, Springfield, 2008-2018 ............................................. 4 
Figure 3. Single-Family Home Sales in Springfield vs. the Region and State, 2008-2018 ................................... 5 
Figure 4. Condominium Sales in Springfield vs. the Region and State, 2008-2018 ............................................ 5 
Figure 5. Multi-Family Sales in Springfield vs. the Region and State, 2008-2018 .............................................. 6 
Figure 6. Location of Single-Family Homes Sales, before and after MGM Springfield License Awarded .......... 7 
Figure 7. Location of Condominium Sales, before and after MGM Springfield License Awarded ..................... 7 
Figure 8. Location of Multi-Family Sales, before and after MGM Springfield License Awarded ....................... 8 
Figure 9. Single-Family Homes, Median Sales Price (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 ................................................ 9 
Figure 10. Condominiums, Median Sales Price (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 ..................................................... 10 
Figure 11. Multi-Family Homes, Median Sales Price (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 ............................................. 10 
Figure 12. Median Estimated Rent Price in Springfield vs. the Surrounding Region and State (2018 Dollars), 
2008-2018 ......................................................................................................................................................... 14 
Figure 13. Number of Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Springfield, 2008-2018 ...................................... 17 
Figure 14. Change in Number of Commercial Buildings, 2008-2018 ................................................................ 18 
Figure 15. Change in Number of Industrial Buildings, 2008-2018 .................................................................... 18 
Figure 16. Springfield Rentable Building Area, 2008-2018 ............................................................................... 19 
Figure 17. Commercial Rentable Building Area, 2008-2018 ............................................................................. 20 
Figure 18. Industrial Rentable Building Area, 2008-2018 ................................................................................. 20 
Figure 19. Commercial Vacancy Rates, 2008-2018 .......................................................................................... 23 
Figure 20. Industrial Vacancy Rates, 2008-2018 .............................................................................................. 23 
Figure 21. Commercial Net Absorption, 2008-2018 ......................................................................................... 24 
Figure 22. Industrial Net Absorption, 2008-2018 ............................................................................................. 25 
Figure 23. Office Commercial Lease Rates (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 ............................................................ 28 
Figure 24. Non-Office Commercial Lease Rates (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 .................................................... 29 
Figure 25. Industrial Lease Rates (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 ........................................................................... 30 
 



Page | iv  
 

Executive Summary 
 

Key Findings: Residential Real Estate Indicators 
 

 Sales of single-family homes in Springfield, Massachusetts flattened in the wake of the Great 
Recession of 2009. However, home sales picked up in 2014, just before the license was awarded to 
MGM and continued through 2018 when MGM Springfield opened. Since the economic recovery 
matched the awarding of the MGM Springfield casino license, it is difficult to truly distinguish the 
impact of the casino from the more general economic recovery on sales of single-family homes. 

 Between 2009 and 2011, Springfield’s single-family home sales saw decreasing growth rates. After 
2011, Springfield’s rates were below those of the surrounding communities and the rest of 
Hampshire and Hampden Counties. However, all three experienced steady growth after the license 
was awarded to MGM in 2014, although this growth could be interpreted as being due to broader 
market conditions.  

 Between licensing and opening of MGM Springfield, condominium sales in the rest of Hampshire 
and Hampden Counties experienced quicker growth rates than both Springfield and its surrounding 
communities.  

 Inflation-adjusted median sales prices in Springfield have increased slightly or remained flat for 
single-family homes and condominiums between the casino’s licensing and opening. Only multi-
family home prices have increased dramatically during that time. Key informant interviews suggest 
that this phenomenon could be due to investors buying up multi-family homes.  

 Median sales prices in Springfield’s surrounding communities and the rest of Hampden and 
Hampshire Counties experienced very little change during that time for single-family homes, 
condominiums, and multi-family homes.  

 Median gross rents in Springfield, the surrounding communities, Hampden and Hampshire 
Counties, and the state as a whole increased in the period prior to and following the awarding of 
the MGM Springfield license. This suggests that increases in the study region could be following 
larger state trends.  

 Springfield’s residential vacancy rate saw a 1.2% decrease in the most recent years of data 
following the license award while the combined surrounding communities and the rest of Hampden 
and Hampshire Counties saw their vacancy rates increase at rates of 0.6% and 1.5%, respectively. 

 Key informants from Springfield noted the increasing pressure on the housing market and 
increasing rental costs. Key informants were unsure whether these trends could be attributed to 
the licensing and opening of MGM Springfield and teased out from larger market forces and other 
development projects. 

 Springfield key informants raised concerns regarding the speculative buying of properties in 
Springfield. For instance, many of the key informants discussed investors buying multi-family 
buildings and raising rents and/or buying a property and leaving it vacant with the hope of selling 
higher. Key informants also discussed concerns regarding displacement and an increase in evictions.  

Key Findings: Commercial and Industrial Real Estate Indicators 
 

 For most of the study period (2008-2018), Springfield added new commercial space at a slightly 
faster rate than the Commonwealth as a whole, but lagged in terms of industrial buildings. That 
trend reversed at the end of 2018 with the addition of a very large industrial facility. 

 Vacancy rates—or the share of rentable building area which is listed on the market—have fallen in 
Springfield over the last 11 years and were lower than the statewide rates at the end of 2018. It is 
difficult to determine how much potentially rentable building area remains off the market. 



Page | v  
 

 Average lease rates for office and industrial properties were consistently much lower in Springfield 
and its surrounding communities than in the Commonwealth as a whole. Lease rates in Springfield 
and its surrounding communities were more comparable to the state for non-office commercial 
properties. 

 The development and opening of MGM Springfield introduced a substantial amount of new 
commercial space to the Springfield real estate market and may have contributed to a fall in 
commercial vacancy rates. Otherwise, there were few obvious breaks from past trends that could 
plausibly be attributed to the casino. 

 Springfield key informants discussed the increased patronage of downtown Springfield as a result 
of MGM Springfield. Key informants did note that increased foot traffic and spillover impacts onto 
businesses as a result of the casino are limited to businesses and restaurants adjacent to MGM 
Springfield. 



Page | 1  
 

Real Estate Conditions in Springfield: Initial Impacts 
 
This report details the Social and Economic Impacts of Gambling in Massachusetts (SEIGMA) research 
team’s examination of the initial impacts of MGM Springfield on the residential, commercial, and industrial 
real estate markets for Springfield and its surrounding communities. It follows the Baseline Real Estate 
Conditions, Host Community Profile: Springfield report that documented residential, commercial, and 
industrial real estate trends prior to the opening of MGM Springfield.1 
 
The purpose of this study is to document any notable changes to the Springfield area’s real estate market 
following the awarding of a casino license to MGM Springfield in February 2014 and the subsequent 
opening of the first resort-style casino in Massachusetts in August of 2018. Since MGM Springfield has been 
open for less than a year at the time of writing, there are some data sources which we had hoped to use, 
but which do not include any post-opening data due to lags in publication. For other measures, we were 
able to obtain more recent data, including real estate data from Zillow and the Multiple Listing Service 
(MLS), as opposed to the more dated L3 Assessors’ Data.   
 
Our impact evaluation uses a comparative approach. It considers changes in the host communities before 
and after the opening of the casino. It then compares these observed changes to other areas that are facing 
similar market conditions but are unlikely to be impacted by the casino development. This is necessary 
because other events that have little or nothing to do with the specific development, such as changes in 
national and state economic cycles, can have a considerable impact on local market conditions. Without 
accounting for these external forces, one can easily misattribute an apparent increase or decrease in 
property sales or values to the development. However, finding a suitable comparison group is difficult, 
especially given practical data limitations. Communities with similar market conditions are often neighbors 
and potentially subject to spillover impacts. Conversely, distant communities might provide a false baseline 
of comparison because they are not subject to similar market or regulatory conditions.  
 
The impact of a new casino facility may spill beyond the borders of its host community. Thus, in addition to 
Springfield, we also track market conditions among nearby areas designated as “official surrounding 
communities” by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission. There are eight surrounding communities in the 
Springfield region, making it impractical to report specific trends for each within the limited confines of this 
report.2 For this report, we compare historic trends in Springfield and its surrounding communities to the 
rest of the communities in Hampden and Hampshire Counties, and against the Commonwealth as a whole 
(Figure 1). When working with data that prevented us from taking averages across communities, we 
present data from Hampden and Hampshire Counties to illustrate the broader region. We believe that 
these broader regions stretch beyond the likely sphere of influence of the casino on real estate conditions. 
Still, we recognize that these are not ideal comparison groups, and we err on the side of caution in our 
interpretation of the evidence. 

 
 
 

 

                                                           
1 A copy of the Baseline Real Estate Conditions report is available for viewing and download from 
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/Real%20Estate%20Profile%2C%20Springfield_2016-08-
30%20%28final%29_0.pdf.  
2 For real estate trends of each surrounding community, please contact Dr. Mark Melnik, Director of Economic & Public Policy 
Research at the UMass Donahue Institute.  

http://www.umass.edu/seigma
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/Real%20Estate%20Profile%2C%20Springfield_2016-08-30%20%28final%29_0.pdf
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/Real%20Estate%20Profile%2C%20Springfield_2016-08-30%20%28final%29_0.pdf
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/Real%20Estate%20Profile%2C%20Springfield_2016-08-30%20%28final%29_0.pdf
https://www.umass.edu/seigma/sites/default/files/Real%20Estate%20Profile%2C%20Springfield_2016-08-30%20%28final%29_0.pdf


Page | 2  
 

Figure 1. Massachusetts Host and Surrounding Communities 

 
 

In January 2019, Dr. Rachel Volberg (SEIGMA Principal Investigator) and Dr. Alissa Mazar (SEIGMA Project 
Manager and Research Associate) also began interviewing key informants in Springfield with a specific focus 
on real estate conditions and housing and concerns surrounding gentrification and displacement. This is 
part of a larger effort to conduct key informant interviews with representatives—from community 
organizers to healthcare officials to economic development officers—in the casino host communities of 
Springfield, Everett, and Plainville. The goals of the qualitative interviews are to: (1) gain an on-the-ground 
understanding of the social and economic conditions in host communities prior to the development of a 
casino, during the process of constructing a casino, and while hosting a casino, (2) utilize qualitative data of 
impacts to triangulate findings from quantitative data, and (3) pinpoint mechanisms to explain quantitative 
trends and correlations.  
 
The SEIGMA research team requested a single interview from potential key informants by contacting their 
professional offices by email and/or telephone. If a key informant agreed to an interview, formal consent 
was obtained. Interviews were not confidential as officials/representatives spoke in their professional 
capacity and in their area of expertise. Interviews were audio recorded and excerpts from the interviews 
are integrated into reports and presentations. Interviews were conducted with Geraldine McCafferty, 
Director of Housing, City of Springfield; Liz Bewsee, Housing and Economic Justice Organizer, Arise for Social 
Justice; Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer Valley Planning 
Commission;  Rose Webster-Smith, Lead Community Organizer, Springfield No One Leaves; and Denise 
Jordan, Executive Director, Springfield Housing Authority. 
 



Page | 3  
 

Residential Real Estate 

Residential Property Sales 
 
Residential property sales are among the most direct indicators of changing real estate market conditions. 
They are often used to measure the impact of new development on surrounding areas. A sustained rise in 
the number and market values of properties following the construction of a new casino may occur as 
investors are willing to buy properties at higher prices. Conversely, a decline in property values may 
indicate negative impacts resulting from possible fears of increased traffic, crime, noise, or other negative 
externalities. 
 
Our analysis uses property sales reported by the proprietary Multiple Listings Service (MLS). The MLS is 
used by real estate brokers to share information with other brokers about listed properties and potential 
buyers and is frequently used by analysts to measure market conditions. The MLS includes property sales of 
all types but this analysis only includes those classified as “arms-length” transactions. This excludes sales 
between family members and other situations where the sales price is not a clear reflection of market 
value. We focus on several general types of residential properties, namely: single-family residential, 
condominiums, and multi-family residential. We ignore other types of residential land uses, such as mobile 
homes and vacant lots as they are relatively rare. 
 
We use the MLS to track the number and market value of property sales in Springfield and its surrounding 
communities compared to the state and the remainder of Hampden and Hampshire Counties. We begin 
tracking market conditions starting in 2008 through 2018, the year in which MGM Springfield opened and 
the most recent full-year for which data were available at the time of writing. We also use the detailed 
address data in the MLS to examine sales trends at varying distances from the site of the casino.  

Impacts on Residential Property Sales 
 
Known as the “City of Homes,” it should come as no surprise that single-family home sales dominate 
Springfield’s residential market (Figure 2). There were 1,272 single-family homes sold in Springfield in 2018, 
accounting for 74 percent of all residential property sales. Multi-family homes comprise most of the 
remaining residential property sales. There were a total of 365 multi-family homes sold in 2018, or 21 
percent of total residential property sales in Springfield. Condominiums represented four percent of total 
residential property sales in 2018 with 71 total sales. Therefore, our analysis focuses on single-family 
homes, condominiums, and multi-family homes.  



Page | 4  
 

Figure 2. Number of Residential Property Sales by Type, Springfield, 2008-2018 

 
Source: MLS and Massachusetts Association of Realtors 
 

Comparing Springfield to more distant communities in the region can help us determine whether the 
observed change in sales is due to local factors (namely the opening of MGM Springfield) as opposed to 
broader market trends.3 There has been a steady rise in single-family home sales in Springfield and the 
surrounding communities since 2014 (Figure 3). This is also the year that MGM Springfield was awarded its 
license. However, we cannot attribute all of this growth to MGM Springfield. Single-family home sales also 
grew for the state and the outlying areas of Hampshire and Hampden—areas where it is doubtful that the 
casino could have had a noticeable impact. It does appear, however, that single-family home sales grew 
slightly faster in Springfield and the surrounding communities post-2014. This is especially true in the two 
years since 2016, where the state and outlying areas (e.g., Agawam, East Longmeadow, Holyoke, and West 
Springfield) began to slow relative to Springfield. While not definitive, the evidence suggests that the 
construction and opening of MGM Springfield may have had a positive influence on the market for single-
family home sales in Springfield and its surrounding communities. At a minimum, it is safe to say that MGM 
Springfield has not, thus far, had a noticeably dampening effect on the volume of local home sales.  

                                                           
3 We assume that, although Springfield and its neighbors might be impacted by MGM Springfield, more distant communities in 

Hampden and Hampshire Counties would be less so, and thus provide a benchmark for measuring casino-related impacts. 
However, the further away, the more likely the housing market is subject to different market dynamics and may not necessarily 
make a good basis for comparison. It is particularly important to note that Springfield and its surrounding communities tend to be 
far more urban than outlying communities in Hampden and Hampshire Counties, and the housing market in Hampshire County (in 
particular) is highly influenced by the large population of college students and faculty.  
 



Page | 5  
 

Figure 3. Single-Family Home Sales in Springfield vs. the Region and State, 2008-2018 

 
Source: Multiple Listing Service and Massachusetts Association of Realtors 

The relatively small number of condominium sales makes it difficult to identify trends. Nevertheless, we 
find little evidence that condo sales in Springfield were at all affected by the awarding of the casino license 
or opening of MGM Springfield. Springfield condominium sales peaked in 2013 (before the license was 
announced) and have remained relatively flat since (Figure 4). There has been an uptick in condominium 
sales in the surrounding communities, but this also does not appear to be related to MGM Springfield. 
Instead, it appears to be part of larger regional sales trends which began several years before the casino 
license was awarded to MGM Springfield. 
 
Figure 4. Condominium Sales in Springfield vs. the Region and State, 2008-2018  

 
Source: Multiple Listing Service and Massachusetts Association of Realtors 



Page | 6  
 

Multi-family home sales show a marked increase in Springfield since 2014, when the license was awarded 
(Figure 5). The surrounding communities, and the rest of Hampshire and Hampden Counties to a lesser 
extent, also show an increase in multi-family sales during that same period. However, sales of multi-family 
homes appear to have slowed in 2017. Before the award, multi-family home sales in Springfield had been 
trending downward since 2009. It is possible that MGM Springfield played a role in reversing that trend, 
although we cannot know definitively whether that rise was due to MGM Springfield. The pattern of sales 
in multi-family homes in the surrounding communities and rest of the region, in contrast, was rather flat 
prior to the license award. With more data we will be able to track trends in multi-family home sales 
beyond 2018.  
 
Figure 5. Multi-Family Sales in Springfield vs. the Region and State, 2008-2018  

 
Source: Multiple Listing Service 

We also consider whether the relative location of home sales has shifted before and after the opening of 
MGM Springfield. With the aid of Geographic Information System (GIS) software, we identified the location 
of nearly all residential property sales in Springfield and its surrounding communities.4  Figure 6 shows 
where single-family home sales were concentrated in 2012-2013 (prior to the announcement of the casino 
license) compared to the two most-recent post-award years of 2017-18. Darker shading in the maps 
represents heavier sales concentrations. Although there is a greater overall level of sales activity in 2017-
2018, there does not appear to be a major shift in the relative location of the sales of single-family homes 
after the license was awarded. There are very few single-family home sales in the immediate vicinity of 
MGM Springfield to begin with, and most of the heaviest concentrations are several miles away. Given that 
closer neighborhoods are more likely to feel the direct impacts of development, it should come as no 
surprise that our initial analysis is one of muted or negligible impacts on area home sales. It would likely be 
several years before the casino might influence residential location and development decisions on a scale 

                                                           
4 The location matching process involves joining the MLS to GIS databases of individual parcels produced by MassGIS and the 
Boston Redevelopment Authority. These GIS databases are based on digitized parcel maps, which are linked to assessors’ data, and 
can be used to identify the latitude and longitude coordinates of every matched parcel. The vast majority (roughly 98 percent) of all 
sales were located to parcels in this first round. The remaining sales are located through street address matching using the Master 
Address File developed by MassGIS. Our final match rates were well in excess of 99 percent, which is a very high match rate for this 
type of work. 



Page | 7  
 

large enough to trigger changes in the spatial pattern of development or have a noticeable impact on more 
distant parcels. 
 
Figure 7 provides a similar analysis of condominium sales. As with single-family homes, we do not see a 
large locational shift. However, there does appear to be at least some increase in the number of 
condominium sales in neighboring areas. There is an increase in condominium sales in the immediate area 
surrounding MGM Springfield as well, but it is not overwhelming. Finally, Figure 8 represents the location of 
multi-family home sales before and after MGM Springfield was awarded its casino license. Like single-family 
and condominium sales, there is an increase in sales activity, but there is no noticeable shift in the location 
of these sales. The bulk of the increase in multi-family sales look to be concentrated in Springfield and 
Holyoke. There do not seem to be any direct impacts of MGM Springfield on the location of single-family, 
condominium, or multi-family home sales. However, we do see a general uptick in overall sales activity 
which may or may not be a result of the new casino.  
 
Figure 6. Location of Single-Family Homes Sales, before and after MGM Springfield License Awarded 

2012 and 2013      2017 and 2018 

Source: MLS 
 

Figure 7. Location of Condominium Sales, before and after MGM Springfield License Awarded 

2012 and 2013       2017 and 2018 

Source: MLS  
 



Page | 8  
 

Figure 8. Location of Multi-Family Sales, before and after MGM Springfield License Awarded 

2012 and 2013       2017 and 2018 

 
Source: MLS 
 

Impacts on Median Sales Price of Residential Properties 
 
If the MGM Springfield casino has had an immediate impact on the local housing market, it is more likely to 
be reflected in changes in the sales price than in the number of sales—at least in the short term. Yet, the 
possible impacts on sale prices are unclear. On the one hand, the new facility may diminish home values if it 
leads to increased traffic, noise, fear of crime, etc. On the other hand, the casino may cause home prices to 
rise if redevelopment encourages more people to move into the area.  
 
It is difficult to separate the influence of MGM Springfield from the overall improvement in the housing 
market, which has experienced a steady climb since 2012. Single-family homes in Springfield typically cost 
far less than the rest of the region or the state (Figure 9). The Springfield average home sold for $160,000 in 
2018—roughly $70,000 less than its surrounding communities and nearly $100,000 less than the outlying 
communities of Hampden and Hampshire Counties. However, the median sale price for a single-family 
home in Springfield has grown faster than the region or the state average in recent years. Between 2014 
and 2018, the median price of a single-family home in Springfield grew by 22 percent, compared to 8 
percent for the surrounding communities and 5 percent for the remainder of Hampden and Hampshire 
Counties. To put this in perspective, if the sales price of housing in Springfield grew at the same rate as the 
outlying communities, the typical Springfield home would have sold for about $140,000 instead of $160,000 
in 2018—a modest, but noticeable difference. This is also faster than the overall Commonwealth (11 
percent), which is heavily influenced by Boston region market.  
 



Page | 9  
 

Figure 9. Single-Family Homes, Median Sales Price (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 

 
Source: MLS and Massachusetts Association of Realtors 
 
While the overall trend is positive, we must be cautious in attributing this change purely to MGM 
Springfield. The upward trend of Springfield and its surrounding communities began several years before 
the announcement of the license, and we see no noticeable bump in the years following the 
announcement. There has not been enough time to determine whether there has been an increase in 
home values in the period following the grand opening of the casino in August 2018. Given that the median 
incomes of some of these communities are lower than the state average, it is also important to note that 
rising residential property values could contribute to gentrification. We will continue to track local and 
regional trends in real estate and housing affordability to answer these questions. Indeed, while it appears 
that the Springfield market is doing relatively well, we cannot purely attribute this growth to MGM 
Springfield or determine yet whether low-income residents are becoming displaced.  
 
We find little evidence that the awarding of the casino license has had much impact (positive or negative) 
on the sales price of condominiums in the region. The real sales price for a Springfield condominium has 
been essentially flat since 2012 (Figure 10) and remains lower than it was just prior to the recession in 
2008. The same is basically true for condominium sales in the surrounding communities as well as the 
remainder of Hampden and Hampshire Counties.  
 



Page | 10  
 

Figure 10. Condominiums, Median Sales Price (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 

Source: MLS and Massachusetts Association of Realtors 
 
The median sales prices of multi-family homes in Springfield appear to have been trending upward since 
2012, two years prior to the awarding of the casino license (Figure 11). For Springfield’s surrounding 
communities, multi-family home sales prices have slightly increased since 2015 and reached $210,000 in 
2018—their highest point in 10 years. Multi-family home prices in the rest of Hampden and Hampshire 
Counties rose in 2014 but seemed to resume their pre-award levels starting in 2015. MGM Springfield’s 
presence may have played a role in these trends, although it is still unclear from the available MLS data 
whether MGM Springfield had any impact on multi-family home prices in this region.  
 
Figure 11. Multi-Family Homes, Median Sales Price (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 

 
Source: MLS  



Page | 11  
 

Table 1 provides a summary of single-family home, condominium, and multi-family home sales for the host 
community (Springfield) as well as the eight officially designated surrounding communities, as compared to 
the immediate region and state. There is no consistent pattern of changes in property sales of single-family, 
condominiums, or multi-family homes in Springfield and its surrounding communities before and after the 
awarding of the license and opening of MGM Springfield. Single-family home prices increased in Springfield 
from 2008 to 2018 but decreased in each of the surrounding communities as well as the rest of Hampden 
and Hampshire Counties. Only Ludlow and Wilbraham experienced an increase in condominium prices, 
while multi-family home prices rose in half of the surrounding communities, particularly in East 
Longmeadow and West Springfield where price increases exceeded $20,000. Meanwhile, the total number 
of sales for the three main residential housing types increased since 2014, when the license was awarded.  
 
Table 1. Residential Housing Sales Summary, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

 
Source: MLS and Massachusetts Association of Realtors 
Note: *This change is from 2009 since no condominiums were sold in Longmeadow in 2008. **State-level housing sales and housing 
price data are available only for single-family homes and condominiums. No multi-family homes were sold in Longmeadow in either 
2008 or 2018.  

The Residential Rental Market 
 
Rentals are a relatively large component of Springfield’s housing market, with 29,999 rental units 
comprising roughly 53 percent of occupied housing units compared to the statewide average of 37 percent. 
Springfield makes up 34 percent of the entire stock of rental units in the rest of Hampden and Hampshire 
Counties. Rental units are also the dominant form of housing closest to MGM Springfield. Ninety-three 
percent of housing units in the census tracts surrounding MGM Springfield are renter-occupied and these 
tenants are the most likely to feel the immediate impact of any change in the housing market.  
 
Unfortunately, the data on rental market conditions is not as robust as property sales. The most 
comprehensive source of community-level rental data is the American Community Survey (ACS), which is 
produced by the U.S. Census Bureau. The ACS collects data annually and pools the data across multiple 
years to ensure a sufficient sample size for reporting smaller areas. The data for most Massachusetts 
municipalities is available only in five-year periods, the most recent release being data pooled from 2013 to 
2017. As a result, these data cannot show year-to-year changes in market conditions. Nor can they be used 
to directly show the effects of the opening of MGM Springfield in Springfield or its neighboring 
communities. However, the data can help illustrate the changes that have taken place following the 
casino’s award of the license and leading up to its opening.  
 

Number of 

Sales in 

2018

Median 

Sales Price 

in 2018 

($2018)

Change in 

Real Median 

Sales Price 

2008-2018

Number of 

Sales in 

2018

Median 

Sales Price 

in 2018 

($2018)

Change in 

Real Median 

Sales Price 

2008-2018

Number of 

Sales in 

2018

Median 

Sales Price 

in 2018 

($2018)

Change in 

Real Median 

Sales Price 

2008-2018

Massachusetts 56,562 $397,000 $35,448 21,981 $375,035 $56,053 ** ** **

Springfield 1,272 $160,000 $3,716 71 $113,000 -$37,452 365 $113,000 -$109,401

Surrounding Communities 1,935 $231,700 -$19,054 357 $157,000 -$17,944 207 $210,000 $5,898

Agawam 221 $230,000 -$34,749 92 $155,000 -$37,730 8 $217,750 -$3,846

Chicopee 427 $185,000 -$12,629 106 $127,000 -$20,245 84 $211,500 -$1,932

East Longmeadow 205 $260,000 -$7,082 8 $325,500 -$30,220 2 $227,250 $63,969

Holyoke 197 $205,000 -$7,849 25 $79,900 -$33,172 79 $196,000 $3,561

Longmeadow 255 $334,000 -$10,057 6 $272,725 -$84,265* ** ** **

Ludlow 199 $217,900 -$20,316 35 $245,000 $68,889 12 $216,000 $11,898

West Springfield 242 $220,000 -$10,927 48 $70,250 -$56,876 21 $223,000 $24,730

Wilbraham 189 $302,500 -$14,149 37 $331,750 $110,154 1 $218,800 -$3,587

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties 2,243 $252,000 -$16,131 400 $176,000 -$7,983 164 $216,250 -$28,556

Single-Family Homes Condominiums Multi-Family Homes



Page | 12  
 

Table 2 shows median gross rents in the two most recent five-year periods adjusted for inflation.5 Although 
lower than Hampden County and the state, Springfield’s median gross rent of $879 per month is similar to 
most of its neighbors—with the exception of Longmeadow where rent is notably higher. Monthly rents in 
Springfield also have not risen as fast as most other communities, although they are still generally 
consistent with area trends. In the period from 2008/12 to 2013/17, there was only a $26 increase in 
median gross rents in Springfield, which is just below trends in the state and Hampshire Counties. 
Wilbraham was the only surrounding community to experience a decrease since the 2008/12 period 
whereas communities such as East Longmeadow and Longmeadow experienced an increase of more than 
$200.  
 

Table 2. Real Median Rents (2018 Dollars), 2008/12 and 2013/17 

 

Gross Rent ($2018) 

2008/12 2013/17 Change 

Massachusetts $1,155 $1,202 $47 

Springfield $853 $879 $26 

Surrounding Communities       

Agawam $924 $998 $74 

Chicopee $850 $907 $57 

East Longmeadow $722 $951 $229 

Holyoke $728 $814 $86 

Longmeadow $1,219 $1,429 $210 

Ludlow $926 $945 $18 

West Springfield $856 $870 $13 

Wilbraham $876 $794 -$82 

Immediate Region      

Hampshire County $849 $887 $38 

Hampden County $991 $1,065 $75 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey Five-Year Estimates 
 

There is some evidence that the rental market in Springfield has been tightening in the past few years, 
although this has yet to translate into notably higher rents as there remains ample supply. Table 3 shows 
five-year vacancy rates for Massachusetts, Springfield, and its surrounding communities, specifically for 
2008-2012 and 2013-2017. Although its rental vacancy rate of nine percent is higher than most other 
communities in the region, Springfield’s vacancy rate declined by 1.2 percentage points between 2008/12 
and 2013/17. Only Wilbraham saw a greater drop in its vacancy rate, while outlying towns in Hampden and 
Hampshire saw a net increase in vacancy rates.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
5 The ACS reports both contract rents, the amount that tenants pay each month to their landlords, as well as gross rents, which 
account for the fact that some contract rents include utilities while others do not. This analysis focuses on median gross rents, 
which are more likely to indicate the true costs of rental housing. 



Page | 13  
 

Table 3. Vacancy Rates, 2008/12 and 2013/17 

 

5-Year Vacancy Rates (%) 

2008/12 2013/17 

Percentage 
Point 

Change 

Massachusetts 9.9% 9.7% -0.2 

Springfield 10.3% 9.0% -1.2 

Surrounding Communities 5.3% 5.7% 0.4 

Agawam 4.2% 3.6% -0.6 

Chicopee 7.2% 6.9% -0.3 

East Longmeadow 3.4% 2.9% -0.5 

Holyoke 5.8% 9.6% 3.8 

Longmeadow 2.5% 2.3% -0.2 

Ludlow 4.6% 6.4% 1.8 

West Springfield 4.9% 3.8% -1.1 

Wilbraham 4.7% 2.1% -2.6 

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties 6.6% 8.0% 1.4 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey Five-Year Estimates 
 

Residential Rent Prices over Time 
To track changes in the cost of rental housing, we use the Zillow Rent Index. Zillow is an extensive online 
real estate database that consists of more than 110 million homes which they use to produce various 
measures and data. The Zillow Rent Index tracks the median rent in a specific geographic area. Through 
their proprietary models, Zillow has created an index for estimating rent that is unaffected by the mix and 
stock of homes at a specific time. Their models observe recent rental listings, prior sales transactions, tax 
assessment information, and geographic location to generate estimated rental values for homes in the 
area. The Zillow Rent Index reports the median estimated rent prices monthly which allows for close 
monitoring of the changing rental housing prices over time. The data is available back to November 2010. 
Further explanation for the Rent Index can be found on Zillow’s methodology page.6 
 
The Zillow Rent Index is not a representative sample like the ACS. The ACS data is taken from the U.S. 
Census bureau where tenants are asked how much they pay for rent, which may be less than the market 
rate. The Zillow Rent Index is instead an estimation of the median rent where proprietary models take in 
various measures of rental houses and produce an estimate of median rent at that time in a specific 
location. While the actual rent prices of the Zillow Rent Index may differ from the ACS gross rents, the 
Zillow Rent Index is useful for analyzing trends over time because it tracks a constant stock of rental houses, 
which is unaffected by the rental houses currently on the market. The Zillow Rent Index acts as a measure 
of the overall rental market in a specific location, compared to the ACS data which takes into account the 
actual gross rent paid by the tenants at that time. The Zillow Rent Index takes into account all rental 
properties in the area for which it has an estimate, whether the rental house is occupied or not. The ACS 
data only includes rental houses that are occupied and paying rent. This may cause differences in the Zillow 
Rent Index and the ACS gross rent data if the unoccupied rental houses are on average more expensive or 

                                                           
6 Zillow Rent Index: Methodology https://www.zillow.com/research/zillow-rent-index-methodology-2393/. 

https://www.zillow.com/research/zillow-rent-index-methodology-2393/


Page | 14  
 

less expensive than the occupied rental houses. Zillow states that it has estimates for 138,200 homes in 
Hampden County and 50,400 homes in Hampshire County.7 
 
There has been a notable rise in rental rates in Springfield and its surrounding communities after MGM 
Springfield was awarded the Western Massachusetts casino license.8,9 However, it is unclear how much of 
this increase is due to the casino independent from broader market trends. Between November 2010 and 
2014, real rents in Springfield were in decline—as were those for surrounding communities and the 
remainder of Hampden and Hampshire Counties (Figure 12). In the year immediately following the 
announcement of the MGM Springfield license, median rents rose quickly, rising by nearly $360 between 
June 2014 to June 2015 in Springfield. Rents in surrounding and outlying regional communities also grew, 
but by a somewhat lesser amount—closer to a $300 increase in the year following the announcement of 
MGM Springfield. So while Springfield residents may have noticed higher prices coinciding with the award 
of the MGM Springfield license, similar hikes were felt in other areas where MGM Springfield was unlikely 
to have had much of an influence. Regardless, these accelerated growth rates were not sustained. Real 
median rents remained almost unchanged since June 2015. There has been a small increase in rents in the 
months since the grand opening of MGM Springfield, but it is premature to tell whether this is a temporary 
or sustained trend.  
 

Figure 12. Median Estimated Rent Price in Springfield vs. the Surrounding Region and State (2018 
Dollars), 2008-2018 

 
Source: Zillow Rent Index Time Series: Multifamily, SFR, Condo/Co-op by City, https://www.zillow.com/research/data/ 

                                                           
7 The accuracy of the Zillow Rent Estimate and the actual rental price of a unit can be seen here: 
https://www.zillow.com/howto/DataCoverageRentZestimateAccuracyMA.htm. 
8 The median rent for the immediate region was estimated as a weighted average by rental unit counts for individual communities 

using data reported by Zillow. Due to availability constraints, the immediate region for the Zillow data is the entirety of Hampshire 
and Hampden County including Springfield and the surrounding communities. 
9 The median rent for the surrounding communities was estimated as a weighted average of rental units of the officially recognized 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission surrounding communities which include Agawam, Chicopee, East Longmeadow, Holyoke, 
Longmeadow, Ludlow, West Springfield, and Wilbraham. 

License 
Awarded

MGM Springfield 
Opening

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

N
o

v-
1

0

M
ay

-1
1

N
o

v-
1

1

M
ay

-1
2

N
o

v-
1

2

M
ay

-1
3

N
o

v-
1

3

M
ay

-1
4

N
o

v-
1

4

M
ay

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

M
ay

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

M
ay

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

M
ay

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
at

e 
($

2
0

1
8

)

Massachusetts

Immediate Region

Surrounding Communities

Springfield

https://www.zillow.com/research/data/
https://www.zillow.com/howto/DataCoverageRentZestimateAccuracyMA.htm


Page | 15  
 

 
Key informants from Springfield discussed their perceptions of the impacts of MGM Springfield on the 
housing and rental markets in Springfield. Key informants discussed the increasing pressure on the housing 
market and rising rental costs, though not attributing all of it to the casino: 
 

We have seen some upward pressure on the housing market […] but it is impossible for me to say 
how much of that is attributable to the casino [...] there have been so many development projects 
going on here. The casino is one high profile one among several. –Geraldine McCafferty, Director of 
Housing, City of Springfield 
 

In 2013, you could get a 2-3 bedroom for $950. Now you’re looking at $1,400-$1,600. –Rose 
Webster-Smith, Lead Community Organizer, Springfield No One Leaves 
 

You can still buy a house for really affordable prices, but rentals are really high. –Catherine Ratté, 
Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer Valley Planning Commission  

 
Springfield key informants also raised concerns regarding the speculative buying of properties in Springfield 
and evictions and displacement: 
 

We’ve had some more outside investors coming in, buying a lot of multi-family housing and raising 
rents. And there is a feeling that it is speculative and is likely tied to the casino. […] Regarding rent 
prices, there seems to be some upward pressure as a result of speculation. […] There is a lot of 
speculative buying with the hope of getting high rents. But then they realize, they really can’t get 
those rents. […] They are still holding, sitting on them and waiting to see if that is still to come. —
Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of Springfield 
 

MGM has impacted property values and rental prices because they are attracting investors, which is 
pushing up the rental costs. […] People are getting pushed to Chicopee, they are getting pushed to 
Holyoke, because if you get evicted right now, there are no apartments to rent.  It is so hard to find 
a place to rent here in Springfield without paying out the nose. –Rose Webster-Smith, Lead 
Community Organizer, Springfield No One Leaves 
 

I am aware of some speculation. You can see the block right across from MGM Springfield, there is a 
lot of waiting and hoping that “we are going to sell for more” […] people are waiting thinking they 
are going to make a mint.—Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer 
Valley Planning Commission 
 

In 2011, we lost 365 units of affordable housing and very few of them were replaced. And that was 
right around the time they started talking about the casino. And it was pretty obvious that landlords 
were looking for ways to get tenants out of properties in the South End and in Metro Center because 
they expected to get more money once the casino opened.—Liz Bewsee, Housing and Economic 
Justice Organizer, Arise for Social Justice 
 

  



Page | 16  
 

It is difficult to say whether it’s the result of the casino or not but there has definitely been an uptick 
in evictions. […] I’ve been keeping track of the number of cases going to Housing Court versus 
District Court in Springfield, and the number of cases overall is climbing. —Liz Bewsee, Housing and 
Economic Justice Organizer, Arise for Social Justice 
 

[…] there is a lot of concern on City Council about displacement but there is not much they can do 
about it at this point because the market is coming in and renovating properties and they are not 
protected. —Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment and land use, Pioneer Valley 
Planning Commission 
 
  



Page | 17  
 

Commercial and Industrial Real Estate 

Inventory 
 
The market for commercial and industrial real estate is another important indicator of the health and 
nature of an area’s economy. This section of the report analyzes Springfield’s commercial and industrial real 
estate inventory, the extent to which that space is utilized, and the price of the space. As before, we focus 
on whether there have been any observable changes following the license award and opening of MGM 
Springfield. 
 
The section makes extensive use of data from CoStar to provide information on indicators not generally 
tracked in publicly available data sources. CoStar data are available for most of Massachusetts on a 
quarterly basis from 2008 to present.10 This analysis will cover the 10-year period between the 1st quarter 
of 2008 and the last quarter of 2018.11  
 
Figure 13. Number of Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Springfield, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc. 
 
The commercial building stock of Springfield has increased somewhat over the years, while the industrial 
stock has stayed almost the same. The city had a total of 1,351 commercial and industrial buildings at the 
end of 2018. Over the 10 years studied, Springfield’s commercial building stock rose from 1,083 to 1,126 
buildings, while its industrial building stock increased from 223 to 225 buildings (Figure 13). 
 

                                                           
10 For more information about CoStar Group Inc. and the CoStar database, please visit http://www.costar.com/. The data used for 
this analysis is not available for download without a CoStar subscription. 
11 We define commercial real estate as any real estate that CoStar defined as Office, Retail, Flex, Hospitality, Health Care, or Sports 
& Recreation. Industrial real estate is any real estate that CoStar defines as Industrial. These definitions were chosen to best 
approximate MA Department of Revenue classifications.  

1,083 
1,126 

223 
225 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
gs

Commercial

Industrial

MGM 
Springfield 
opened

License 
awarded

http://www.costar.com/


Page | 18  
 

Springfield experienced slightly faster growth in number of commercial buildings than either the 
Commonwealth or the surrounding communities (Figure 14). This appears to be a continuation of historic 
trends statewide rather than being associated with the awarding of the MGM Springfield casino license or 
opening, per se. While Springfield outpaced both the state and its surrounding communities in commercial 
buildings, it lagged in the growth of industrial buildings (Figure 15). 
 
Figure 14. Change in Number of Commercial Buildings, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc. 
 

Figure 15. Change in Number of Industrial Buildings, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc. 
 

104.0%

102.9%
103.3%

90%

95%

100%

105%

110%

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
h

an
ge

 S
in

ce
 Q

1
 2

0
0

8

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded

100.9%
101.8%
103.0%

90%

95%

100%

105%

110%

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
h

an
ge

 S
in

ce
 Q

1
 2

0
0

8

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 19  
 

Another measure of an area’s building inventory is rentable building area (RBA), measured as the usable 
area (in square feet) of an area’s building stock. Unlike changes in the number of buildings, the RBA 
accounts for the sometimes dramatic size differences in buildings. Although commercial buildings comprise 
a larger share of Springfield’s RBA, the typical industrial building is much larger. For example, while 
industrial buildings make up only 17.3 percent of the commercial and industrial building stock, they account 
for 27.6 percent of the RBA in Springfield. 
 
Figure 16. Springfield Rentable Building Area, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc. 
 
Springfield’s growth in commercial RBA outpaced its surrounding communities but lagged behind the 
Commonwealth until the third quarter of 2018 (Figure 17). The opening of MGM Springfield was almost 
certainly one of the main drivers of this growth. In future years, we look forward to examining whether 
MGM Springfield will trigger spillover commercial development.  

19,291,715

20,930,983

8,113,438 8,384,813

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

Sq
u

ar
e 

Fe
et

Commercial

Industrial

MGM 
Springfield 
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 20  
 

Figure 17. Commercial Rentable Building Area, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc. 
 
Springfield only increased its industrial building inventory by two buildings since 2008, leaving few 
opportunities for growth in industrial RBA (Figure 18). That said, the two new industrial buildings did 
account for enough growth in RBA to almost match the Commonwealth’s growth rate over the same time 
period. An analysis of the CoStar records suggests that neither of these new buildings were related to the 
development of the casino. The CRRC MA rail car factory in East Springfield is one of the other new 
buildings in Springfield’s economy. This is a reminder of the importance of caution when attributing 
changes in Springfield’s economy to the opening of MGM Springfield. 
 
Figure 18. Industrial Rentable Building Area, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc. 

108.5%

102.6%

107.3%

90%

95%

100%

105%

110%
2

0
0

8
 Q

1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
h

an
ge

 S
in

ce
 Q

1
 2

0
0

8

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded

103.3%

101.2%

103.5%

90%

95%

100%

105%

110%

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
h

an
ge

 S
in

ce
 Q

1
 2

0
0

8

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 21  
 

Table 4 reports changes in the number of commercial buildings and RBA for Massachusetts, Springfield, and 
individual surrounding communities. At four percent, Springfield is one of only three area communities to 
exceed the Commonwealth’s growth in commercial buildings since 2008. Since MGM Springfield was 
awarded their casino license in the 2nd quarter of 2014, Springfield’s growth in terms of both buildings and 
rentable building area exceeds that of the Commonwealth, with Springfield’s RBA growth rate exceeding 
every one of the surrounding communities between Q2 2014 and Q4 2018. 
 
Table 4. Commercial Inventory, Massachusetts, Springfield, and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

 

Number of 
Buildings (Q4 

2018) 

Percent 
Change, 

Q1 
2008-Q4 

2018 

Percent 
Change, 

Q2 
2014-Q4 

2018 

Rentable 
Building Area 
(Square Feet, 

Q4 2018) 

Percent 
Change, 

Q1 
2008-Q4 

2018 

Percent 
Change, 

Q2 
2014-

Q4 
2018 

Massachusetts 53,457 3.3% 1.5% 1,100,574,338 7.3% 3.4% 

Springfield 1,126 4.0% 2.0% 20,930,983 8.5% 5.5% 

Surrounding Communities 1,998 2.9% 1.1% 28,077,102 2.6% 0.7% 

Agawam 226 6.6% 2.7% 2,439,333 4.7% 1.0% 

Chicopee 525 1.7% 0.4% 5,003,232 1.9% 0.6% 

East Longmeadow 110 1.9% 0.9% 1,342,493 1.9% 1.4% 

Holyoke 565 2.0% 0.9% 10,099,722 1.1% 0.5% 

Longmeadow 35 2.9% 2.9% 854,723 2.5% 2.5% 

Ludlow 93 3.3% 1.1% 1,208,451 7.8% 0.5% 

West Springfield 366 3.4% 1.7% 6,031,323 1.8% 0.8% 

Wilbraham 78 5.4% 0.0% 1,097,825 18.5% 0.0% 

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties 1,827 3.5% 1.1% 22,824,985 6.8% 1.3% 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Springfield experienced a slower rate of growth in industrial buildings but a higher rate of growth in 
industrial RBA from 2008 to 2018 (Table 5). Most of the large developments in the surrounding 
communities, either in terms of buildings or RBA, occurred prior to MGM Springfield’s license award in 
2014. From Q1 2008 to Q4 2018, the less densely populated areas in Hampden and Hampshire Counties 
actually saw a faster rate of growth in both industrial buildings and industrial RBA than did Springfield, 
Springfield’s surrounding communities, or the Commonwealth as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 22  
 

Table 5. Industrial Inventory, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

 

Number of 
Buildings 
(Q4 2018) 

Percent 
Change, 

Q1 
2008-Q4 

2018 

Percent 
Change, 

Q2 
2014-Q4 

2018 

Rentable 
Building Area 
(Square Feet, 

Q4 2018) 

Percent 
Change, 

Q1 
2008-Q4 

2018 

Percent 
Change, 

Q2 
2014-Q4 

2018 

Massachusetts 11,171 3.0% 1.5% 419,177,835 3.5% 2.0% 

Springfield 225 0.9% 0.9% 8,384,813 3.3% 3.3% 

Surrounding Communities 520 1.8% 0.8% 25,427,620 1.2% 0.1% 

Agawam 64 0.0% 0.0% 2,066,720 0.0% 0.0% 

Chicopee 129 1.6% 0.0% 7,677,157 0.9% 0.0% 

East Longmeadow 31 3.3% 3.3% 3,289,791 0.1% 0.1% 

Holyoke 181 1.1% 1.1% 8,633,600 0.2% 0.2% 

Longmeadow 1 0.0% 0.0% 253 0.0% 0.0% 

Ludlow 26 0.0% 0.0% 526,203 0.0% 0.0% 

West Springfield 79 3.9% 1.3% 2,580,222 8.9% 0.2% 

Wilbraham 9 12.5% 0.0% 722,367 0.4% 0.0% 

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties 330 4.8% 0.9% 15,241,944 6.7% 0.5% 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  

Vacancy and Absorption 
 
The next set of metrics considers how available space is being utilized. First, we consider vacancy rates. A 
vacancy rate is the percentage of rentable building area that is not currently in use.12  
 
Figure 19 shows commercial vacancy rates in Springfield, its surrounding communities, and Massachusetts. 
Owing to the smaller number of total buildings, it is to be expected that the trends for Springfield and its 
surrounding communities are more volatile than the statewide trend. While many factors, including nation-
wide economic growth, have likely effected this trend, it is noteworthy that Springfield’s commercial 
vacancy rate has fallen to its lowest level in the study period. As the construction of the casino displaced 
existing commercial tenants, it is likely that many of those tenants moved to previously vacant space 
elsewhere in Springfield or in the surrounding communities.  
 

                                                           
12 CoStar vacancy rates do not take into account abandoned buildings that are not on the market and thus may 
underestimate true vacancy rates in communities with considerable economic blight. 



Page | 23  
 

Figure 19. Commercial Vacancy Rates, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Springfield’s industrial vacancy rate has fallen precipitously since 2014 (Figure 20). However, this fall 
actually started a few quarters before the award of the license and continued through the end of 2018. This 
makes it doubtful that the casino had any direct role in this decline. 
 
Figure 20. Industrial Vacancy Rates, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Next, we consider net absorption, or the net change in occupied space in an area’s rentable building area 
from one quarter to the next. Net absorption measures the difference between rentable building area that 
is newly occupied and the rentable building area that is no longer occupied since the last period. Since net 
absorption is presented in terms of square feet instead of a share of rentable building area, it captures 
changes in the market that may not be detected by the vacancy rate alone. For example, a vacant building 

6.0%

4.3%

8.8%

5.2%

8.1%

5.7%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

V
ac

an
t 

Sh
ar

e 
o

f 
R

en
ta

b
le

 B
u

ild
in

g 
A

re
a

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded

15.3%

3.7%

10.8%

4.8%

9.4%

4.9%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

V
ac

an
t 

Sh
ar

e 
o

f 
R

en
ta

b
le

 B
u

ild
in

g 
A

re
a

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 24  
 

that is taken off of the market entirely would cause a fall in the vacancy rate, but no corresponding change 
in net absorption. Analysis typically considers several consecutive quarters of high positive net absorption 
as indicative of shrinking supply of available space and sends a signal to developers that the market is ripe 
for construction. Net absorption is measured quarterly, so each point measures the net change in occupied 
rentable building area during that quarter. Zero net absorption indicates no change from the previous 
quarter. Although typically measured in square feet, Figure 21 and Figure 22 report net absorption in 
standardized units (i.e., each divided by its standard deviation) to allow for comparison across Springfield, 
its surrounding communities, and the Commonwealth. 
 
Springfield, like its surrounding communities and the Commonwealth, saw a good deal of volatility in its 
commercial net absorption over the course of the study period. One difference is that, while all three 
geographies experienced more quarters of positive net absorption than negative net absorption, Springfield 
and its surrounding communities experienced less of those quarters than the Commonwealth as a whole 
(Figure 21). While Massachusetts experienced 40 out of 44 quarters of positive net absorption, Springfield 
and its surrounding communities experienced only 29 and 28 quarters of positive net absorption, 
respectively. 
 
Figure 21. Commercial Net Absorption, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Massachusetts also had more quarters of positive industrial net absorption than Springfield or its 
surrounding communities (35 in Massachusetts versus 28 in Springfield and 30 in the surrounding 
communities), although the discrepancy was not quite as pronounced. The industrial data shows more very 
large changes in net absorption, which is to be expected given the very large rentable area of many 
industrial properties. 
 

-3.00

-2.00

-1.00

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

N
et

 A
b

so
rb

ti
o

n
 (

st
an

d
ar

d
iz

ed
 u

n
it

s)

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM
Springfield
openedLicense 

awarded



Page | 25  
 

Figure 22. Industrial Net Absorption, 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Springfield and most of its surrounding communities had a lower commercial vacancy rate than that of the 
Commonwealth in the fourth quarter of 2018 (Table 6). Every geography being studied saw their 
commercial vacancy rate fall and their net absorption rise between Q1 2008 and Q4 2018. Some, however, 
have experienced a small increase in vacancy rates since MGM Springfield’s gaming license award in Q2 
2014. 
 
Table 6. Commercial Vacancy and Absorption, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

 

Vacancy 
Rate (Q4 

2018) 

Change, 
Q1 

2008-
Q4 

2018 

Change, 
Q2 

2014-
Q4 

2018 

Net 
Absorption 
(Q1 2008- 
Q4 2018) 

Net 
Absorption 
(Q2 2014- 
Q4 2018) 

Massachusetts 5.7% -2.4% -1.4% 74,791,217 39,558,013 

Springfield 4.3% -1.7% -2.4% 1,154,425 438,180 

Surrounding Communities 5.2% -3.6% -0.9% 1,087,827 745,835 

Agawam 1.4% -3.6% -3.1% 207,001 54,665 

Chicopee 2.0% -5.8% -2.3% 96,568 53,010 

East Longmeadow 5.8% -2.6% -0.1% 277,177 271,445 

Holyoke 4.4% -2.9% 2.6% 35,987 29,653 

Longmeadow 3.5% -2.9% -0.6% 35,563 25,708 

Ludlow 8.1% -4.4% 0.2% 108,985 71,018 

West Springfield 2.9% -3.1% -0.5% 124,490 120,308 

Wilbraham 3.9% -2.9% -1.2% 1,674,176 1,340,983 

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties 6.0% -3.8% -4.0% 453,982 53,831 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  

-3.00

-2.00

-1.00

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00
2

0
0

8
 Q

1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

N
et

 A
b

so
rb

ti
o

n
 (

st
an

d
ar

d
iz

ed
 u

n
it

s)

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM
Springfield
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 26  
 

 
Springfield and the surrounding communities’ industrial vacancy rate was also lower than that for the 
Commonwealth at the end of 2018. Within the surrounding communities, Agawam and East Longmeadow 
have industrial vacancy rates quite a bit higher than that of the Commonwealth. Springfield and all of its 
surrounding communities, except for East Longmeadow and Longmeadow (which CoStar indicates only has 
one industrial facility), experienced positive net absorption over the 11-year study period. Springfield joined 
East Longmeadow in experiencing negative industrial net absorption between the award of the MGM 
Springfield’s casino license and the end of 2018. 
 
Table 7. Industrial Vacancy and Absorption, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

 

Vacancy 
Rate (Q4 

2018) 

Change, 
Q1 

2008-
Q4 

2018 

Change, 
Q2 

2014-
Q4 

2018 

Net 
Absorption 
(Q1 2008- 
Q4 2018) 

Net 
Absorption, 
(Q2 2014-
Q4 2018) 

Massachusetts 4.9% -4.5% -2.8% 34,600,255 15,116,933 

Springfield 3.7% -11.6% -15.2% 1,253,651 -236,854 

Surrounding Communities 4.8% -6.0% -5.3% 1,837,832 458,947 

Agawam 14.4% 2.2% 0.5% 52,696 61,759 

Chicopee 1.8% -13.9% -9.5% 962,374 232,384 

East Longmeadow 16.5% 13.7% -0.6% -401,205 -424,394 

Holyoke 1.8% -8.0% -6.5% 746,403 164,040 

Longmeadow 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 

Ludlow 3.0% -8.9% 2.1% 66,850 78,100 

West Springfield 2.8% -3.7% -0.8% 338,964 313,808 

Wilbraham 0.4% -13.7% -5.4% 71,750 33,250 

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties 3.2% -5.9% -12.1% 2,105,941 201,575 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Table 8 presents an alternative concept of vacancy rates, taken from Valassis Lists, a direct mail marketing 
firm that supplies United States Postal Service vacancy data to the web-based mapping company 
PolicyMap. As mentioned above, CoStar’s vacancy rates capture properties that are currently on the market 
but not occupied. Commercial or industrial buildings that have been abandoned altogether, or whose 
owners have chosen not to put them on the market, are not included. Valassis’ vacancy rate measures the 
share of vacant addresses. It considers all buildings, but is based on a share of buildings and not square 
footage. This measure also does not distinguish commercial from industrial properties. While they may not 
be directly comparable, when viewed together, both CoStar and Valassis help to provide a more complete 
view of industrial vacancy in the host and surrounding communities. 
 
With a Valassis vacancy rate of 12.9 percent, Springfield joins Holyoke (19.4 percent) and West Springfield 
(13.5 percent) in possessing a rate higher than that of the Commonwealth as a whole. While these figures 
reflect a different concept of vacancy than the concept presented by CoStar, they do suggest that many 
communities in the region have a relatively high business vacancy rate, and that Springfield is no exception.  
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 27  
 

 
Table 8. Valassis Vacancy Rates, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

 

Valassis 
Vacancy Rate, 
All Businesses, 
Q4 2018 

Massachusetts 10.6% 

Springfield 12.9% 

Surrounding Communities   

Agawam 8.2% 

Chicopee 9.7% 

East Longmeadow N/A 

Holyoke 19.4% 

Longmeadow 5.2% 

Ludlow N/A 

West Springfield 13.5% 

Wilbraham 8.1% 

Hampden County 11.8% 

Hampshire County 10.0% 
Source: Valassis Lists 
Notes: Vacancy rates from Valassis Lists are defined as the share of vacant addresses according to the U.S. Postal Service. 

Lease Rates 
 
Price is another important factor in an area’s real estate market. While there are a number of factors that 
determine what price property owners can charge in rent, it stands to reason that those areas with higher 
lease rates are seen as more desirable by businesses and organizations seeking rental space. However, 
there are a few caveats. First, some organizations own the real estate that they occupy, and those 
properties are not included in the CoStar lease rate data. Second, individual buildings may possess 
characteristics that make them particularly valuable to certain types of businesses and organizations. For 
example, on-site security, three-phase power, or easy access to the highway may be essential for the 
operations of some businesses but unimportant for others. This can make a direct comparison difficult. In 
this respect, the difference in lease rates between municipalities may say as much about the industry mix 
and business activities of those municipalities as it does about their relative economic health. 
 
We analyze lease rates separately for industrial and commercial space, dividing commercial leases into two 
groups: office and non-office real estate. This is because there are often significant differences in the lease 
rates between office and non-office real estate.13  
 
Commercial lease rates in Springfield and its surrounding communities are far lower than the 
Massachusetts average—which is heavily influenced by the high priced Boston area market (Figure 23). 
Regardless, we see little evidence that the announcement of MGM Springfield has had a large influence on 
commercial lease rates in the area. There was a slight increase in lease rates in the months following the 

                                                           
13 Office commercial real estate often includes the offices of professional service firms (e.g., lawyers, doctors, and 
government buildings, etc.), while non-office commercial real estate includes restaurants, retail stores, sports and 
entertainment facilities, transportation facilities, and many other types of real estate. Lease rates for industrial real 
estate are presented separately. 



Page | 28  
 

announcement—but the differences are marginal and the natural volatility in the data makes it difficult to 
establish clear patterns. 
 
Figure 23. Office Commercial Lease Rates (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
There is less discrepancy between Springfield and the Commonwealth when examining non-office 
commercial lease rates. Aside from some volatility over the last few years, lease rates for all three 
geographies have tended to track fairly closely with one another (Figure 24). Springfield saw commercial 
non-office lease rates fall rather dramatically between the award of MGM Springfield’s casino license and 
MGM Springfield’s opening day. The rapid growth in lease rates towards the end of 2018, however, has 
made up for much of that loss. Springfield’s surrounding communities experienced a similar pattern of 
decline followed by rapid growth in lease rates, although that decline took place over a longer span of time 
than in Springfield. 
 

$15.63

$15.61

$16.50 $17.39

$25.09

$21.71

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
o

st
 p

er
 S

q
ar

e 
Fo

o
t 

($
2

0
1

8
)

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield 
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 29  
 

Figure 24. Non-Office Commercial Lease Rates (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Lease rates for industrial properties in Springfield and its surrounding communities were also consistently 
lower than those in the Commonwealth as a whole (Figure 25). Adjusted for inflation, Springfield’s average 
industrial lease rate rose by 72 cents over the study period, while the average in the surrounding 
communities fell by $1.01. Neither reached the state average, which started and ended the study period 
above $6, adjusted for inflation, and only briefly fell below $5. This may reflect different types of industrial 
activity occurring in Greater Springfield versus other parts of the Commonwealth. For example, certain 
industries (manufacturing; warehousing; shipping) may prefer lower cost facilities in Western 
Massachusetts over Eastern Massachusetts properties with higher lease rates and specialized facilities. 

$13.68 $12.42

$14.50

$14.71
$14.14

$14.34

$0.00

$2.00

$4.00

$6.00

$8.00

$10.00

$12.00

$14.00

$16.00

$18.00

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
o

st
 p

er
 S

q
ar

e 
Fo

o
t 

($
2

0
1

8
)

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield 
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 30  
 

Figure 25. Industrial Lease Rates (2018 Dollars), 2008-2018 

 
Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
Table 9 shows lease rates in Springfield, its surrounding communities, and Massachusetts. Even within its 
region, Springfield’s average office lease rates are low, with only Chicopee being lower. Adjusted for 
inflation, office lease rates have risen in most of Springfield’s surrounding communities, but have very 
slightly decreased in Springfield itself. Only Longmeadow and Wilbraham have average office lease rates in 
excess of the Commonwealth’s average rate. Non-office commercial lease rates, which can cover a fairly 
diverse group of properties, tend to be more diverse as well, with rates as low as $8.95/square foot in 
Agawam to as high as $29.17/square foot in Longmeadow. While data are unavailable for Longmeadow and 
Wilbraham, average industrial lease rates tend to be similar to the Springfield lease rate in Q4 2018. The 
large changes observed over the 11-year period, however, suggest that may not have always been the case. 
Of the surrounding communities, Ludlow is an outlier in having an average industrial lease rate in excess of 
the Commonwealth’s average rate. 

$3.42

$4.14

$4.51

$3.50

$6.24

$6.16

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

2
0

0
8

 Q
1

2
0

0
9

 Q
1

2
0

1
0

 Q
1

2
0

1
1

 Q
1

2
0

1
2

 Q
1

2
0

1
3

 Q
1

2
0

1
4

 Q
1

2
0

1
5

 Q
1

2
0

1
6

 Q
1

2
0

1
7

 Q
1

2
0

1
8

 Q
1

C
o

st
 p

er
 S

q
ar

e 
Fo

o
t 

($
2

0
1

8
)

Springfield

Surrounding Communities

Massachusetts

MGM 
Springfield 
opened

License 
awarded



Page | 31  
 

Table 9. Commercial and Industrial Lease Rates, Springfield and Surrounding Communities, 2008-2018 

  Office Lease Rates Non-Office Lease Rates Industrial Lease Rates 

 

Q4 2018 
Rate Per 

Sq. Ft 
($2014) 

Percent 
Change,  

Q1 
2008- 

Q4 2018 

Percent 
Change,  

Q2 
2014- 

Q4 2018 

Q4 2018 
Rate Per 

Sq. Ft 
($2014) 

Percent 
Change,  

Q1 
2008- 

Q4 2018 

Percent 
Change,  

Q2 
2014- 

Q4 2018 

Q4 2018 
Rate Per 

Sq. Ft 
($2014) 

Percent 
Change,  

Q1 
2008- 

Q4 2018 

Percent 
Change,  

Q2 
2014- 

Q4 2018 
Massachusetts $21.71 -13.5% 6.3% $14.34 1.5% 6.8% $6.16 -1.3% 15.7% 

Springfield $15.61 -0.1% 1.4% $12.42 -9.2% -1.5% $4.14 21.1% 10.8% 

Surrounding Communities $17.39 5.4% 15.5% $14.71 1.4% 28.8% $3.50 -22.5% 19.8% 

Agawam $16.11 -14.2% 3.8% $8.95 -33.4% -17.0% $4.41 -51.2% 11.0% 

Chicopee $13.90 6.3% -5.3% $15.00 1.5% 22.9% $4.70 12.1% 12.2% 

East Longmeadow $17.60 -8.8% 5.5% $24.49 44.2% 12.5% $2.47 -53.3% 4.7% 

Holyoke $16.34 18.7% 40.1% $15.30 19.7% 45.8% $3.97 38.3% 71.7% 

Longmeadow $28.63 42.8% 37.0% $29.17 -12.7% 31.2% N/A N/A N/A 

Ludlow $18.74 50.5% 13.6% $17.88 69.0% 32.9% $9.75 94.5% 149.4% 

West Springfield $17.37 -0.3% 7.1% $15.08 3.3% 35.7% $4.96 -35.9% 104.6% 

Wilbraham $22.95 N/A 60.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Rest of Hampden and Hampshire Counties $19.78 -0.6% 9.1% $12.92 3.3% 3.7% $4.34 -0.4% 32.1% 

Source: The CoStar Group Inc.  
 
The desirability and value of commercial and industrial real estate in Springfield may also be impacted if 
MGM Springfield results in increased patronage of the downtown area. Springfield key informants 
discussed increased foot traffic in downtown Springfield as a result of MGM Springfield. In particular, key 
informants noted that increased foot traffic and spillover impacts onto businesses as a result of the casino 
are currently limited to businesses and restaurants near MGM Springfield: 
 

MGM has had some impact on retail because there are a number of local businesses that are now 
downtown. There are a couple of restaurants that relocated downtown waiting for the casino to 
open. But businesses aren’t really thriving outside of that casino district. […] My guess is that maybe 
in the summer time they may start coming away from the casino more toward metro downtown to 
the entertainment district. –Denise Jordan, Executive Director, Springfield Housing Authority 
 
I have seen increased foot traffic around the venue and it does seem that there is spillover into 
downtown. How far? I can’t say. […] There are more [people] around on Main Street in the evenings. 
––Geraldine McCafferty, Director of Housing, City of Springfield 
 
The restaurants around the casino, the new ones and existing ones, there is definitely spillover. We 
were making lunch plans with people that used to work for the city and they were saying, “where 
can we go where there’s isn’t a line anymore? There never used to be lines in Springfield.” And the 
downtown in the evenings is also much livelier. ––Catherine Ratté, Principal Planner—environment 
and land use, Pioneer Valley Planning Commission 

  



Page | 32  
 

Conclusion 

Springfield is the fourth largest city in New England and the largest city in its metro area of over half a 
million people. It is by far the largest community to currently host a casino in New England, and that size 
certainly plays a role in how the casino affects the real estate market in the community. For example, while 
MGM Springfield’s reported plan to hire roughly 3,000 employees would likely create a serious need for 
housing in much smaller communities like Plainville, Springfield may be more able to meet those numbers, 
both in terms of labor force and housing stock. In fact, the Executive Office of Labor and Workforce 
Development reported that in 2018, Springfield already hosted 7 employers with 1,000-4,999 employees 
each, in addition to one employer (Baystate Medical Center) with 5,000-9,999 employees. 
 
Another factor affecting Springfield’s housing dynamics may be unused space. Much of the data collected 
for this study is collected during the course of various commercial transactions, and while that data is 
timely and useful, there is a sense that, at least in Springfield’s downtown, there may be large amounts of 
space that is unutilized. Census data shows that the Springfield in 1960 housed roughly 20,000 more 
residents than the Springfield in 2010, suggesting that there may be underutilized residential space in the 
city as well.  
 
While there were few major developments in the Springfield real estate market that could confidently be 
ascribed to the casino beyond an increase in the amount of commercial space in the city and a 
corresponding decline in the commercial vacancy rate, that does not necessarily mean that other impacts 
will not become apparent over time. The timeliest data available to us reported up to December 2018. As 
the casino continues to operate, its effect on the labor market, municipal finances, and the general feel of 
the city might create impacts that could not be seen four months out from opening. It is also possible that 
the effects of the casino will become clearer as less timely data, such as data on building permits and 
evictions, becomes more available for research. At this time, however, the available data does seem to 
indicate that the award of a casino license to MGM Springfield, and the subsequent opening of the casino, 
have not affected Springfield’s real estate market, or that of the surrounding communities, in any major 
way. 
 
Springfield key informants raised concerns regarding the increasing pressure on the housing market and 
increasing rental costs. Key informants did note that they were unsure whether and how much of this trend 
could be attributed to the licensing and opening of MGM Springfield compared to other market forces. 
Springfield key informants also raised concerns over the speculative buying of properties in Springfield and 
were quite confident that this was related to the licensing and opening of MGM Springfield. For instance, 
many of the key informants discussed investors buying multi-family buildings and raising rents and/or 
buying a property and leaving it vacant with the hope of selling higher. Key informants also discussed 
concerns regarding displacement and an increase in evictions. Finally, Springfield key informants discussed 
increased foot traffic in downtown Springfield as a result of MGM Springfield but noted that these spillover 
impacts are currently limited to businesses and restaurants close to MGM Springfield. 



MGM Construction Overview: 
Spending, Employment, and 

Economic Impacts 
 

Presented by Rod Motamedi, MBA 
Senior Research Manager, Economic and Public Policy 

Research 
UMass Donahue Institute 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Property Background 

• Construction period was March 2015 through 
August 2018 
 

• First integrated resort casino in the 
Commonwealth 
 

• Urban casino in the middle of downtown 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

The Data 

• MGM provided us the data at the conclusion 
of each contract. In some cases, the data was 
in draft form. 
 

• Contract summaries included 
– Worker hours, wages, ZIP, and limited 

demographics 
– Company ZIP, total contract value, subcontractors, 

and payment schedule 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Construction Components 

• Hotel/Podium/Armory 
• Enabling 
• Garage 
• Daycare and Church 
• Offsite improvements 
• Signage 
• 95 and 101 State Street and 99 Union projects 



$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

5/
1/

20
15

7/
1/

20
15

9/
1/

20
15

11
/1

/2
01

5

1/
1/

20
16

3/
1/

20
16

5/
1/

20
16

7/
1/

20
16

9/
1/

20
16

11
/1

/2
01

6

1/
1/

20
17

3/
1/

20
17

5/
1/

20
17

7/
1/

20
17

9/
1/

20
17

11
/1

/2
01

7

1/
1/

20
18

3/
1/

20
18

5/
1/

20
18

7/
1/

20
18

9/
1/

20
18

11
/1

/2
01

8

Construction Spending by Quarter 

Enabling Garage Hotel/Podium/Armory

95/101 State and 99 Union All Else Monthly Average

Total: $573 million 

Monthly Avg.: $12.7 million 



Hotel/Podium/Ar
mory 
70% 

Garage 
13% 

Enabling 
9% 

95/101 State and 
99 Union 

4% 

All Else 
4% Spending by Component 





City Contract Value ($M) 
Agawam $6.90  
Chicopee $46.48  
Holyoke $7.06  
Ludlow $28.41  
Springfield $83.96  
West Springfield $2.67  
Total $175.47  





Did Not Meet 
Diversity Criteria 

64.5% 

Woman Owned 
21.7% 

Minority Owned 
7.4% 

Veteran Owned 
6.4% Spending by Diversity Criteria 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Workers and Wages 

We estimate there were about 4,250 workers 
who worked 2.6 million hours over 16 quarters 
and were compensated $173 million. 
 
FTEs: 1,251 
Avg. Hours/Worker: 612 (approx. 15 weeks @ 
40 hrs./week) 
Avg. Hourly Comp/Worker: $66 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
H&SC Summary Hours and 

Compentation 

Geography Average Hours Average 
Compensation 

Springfield 806 $45,212  
Surrounding 
Communities 769 $47,640  





Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Workers by H&SC 

Town/City Workers 
Agawam 54 
Chicopee 185 

East Longmeadow 44 
Holyoke 81 

Longmeadow 8 
Ludlow 125 

Springfield 509 
West Springfield 84 

Wilbraham 30 
Total 1,120 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Race/Ethnicity of Workers 

Hispanic 
44% 

White/ 
Other 
35% 

Black 
19% 

All Else 
2% 

SPRINGFIELD POPULATION 

Hispanic 
34% 

White/ 
Other 
38% 

Black 
27% 

All Else 
1% 

SPRINGFIELD WORKERS 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Gender of Workers 

Female 
13% 

Male 
87% 

SPRINGFIELD WORKERS 
Female 

7% 

Male 
93% 

MA WORKERS 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Veteran Status 

No 
89% 

Yes 
11% 

SPRINGFIELD WORKERS 

No 
94% 

Yes 
6% 

MA WORKERS 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Key Concepts for Economic Impacts 

• How do economic models work? What are 
their structure and methods? 
 

• What are the key results and how are they 
defined: 
– Employment 
– Output 
– Value Added 





Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Summary of Employment Impacts 

Total Employment 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Avg. 
Direct 189 697 1,629 447 1 593 
Business to Business 
(Indirect) 40 85 145 10 5 57 
Total Induced 133 446 1,000 338 83 400 

Consumption-Based 
Induced 77 255 560 134 32 212 
Other Induced 56 191 440 204 51 188 

Total 362 1,229 2,774 795 89 1,050 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

New Economic Activity ($M) 

Economic 
Activity 

Total (Output) Net New (Value Added) 
Annual Avg. Cum. Annual Avg. Cum. 

Metro Boston $52  $259  $32  $158  
Southeast $9  $47  $6  $28  

Pioneer Valley $82  $409  $49  $246  
Central $23  $115  $14  $69  

Berkshires $2  $12  $2  $8  
Cape and 

Islands $1  $6  $1  $4  
MA $170  $849  $102  $512  



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  
 
 

Timeline of Upcoming Products 

PPC Operating Report 
December 2019 

MGM Construction 
Report 
September 2019 

MGM Lottery Report 
December 2019 

MGM New Employee 
Survey Report  
Spring 2020 

MGM Springfield Real 
Estate Report 
September 2019 



Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 F

is
ca

l I
m

pa
ct

s A
na

ly
se

s  

Thank you! 

For more information, contact: 
 

Dr. Mark Melnik 
Director, Economic and Public Policy Research 
University of Massachusetts Donahue Institute 

MMelnik@donahue.umassp.edu 
www.donahue.umassp.edu 

www.umass.edu/seigma 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:MMelnik@donahue.umassp.edu
http://www.donahue.umassp.edu/
http://www.umass.edu/seigma


Executive Summary 

The UMass Donahue Institute (UMDI) is a member of the Social and Economic Impacts of Gambling in 
Massachusetts (SEIGMA) research team charged with carrying out aspects of the research agenda of the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission (MGC). This report seeks to inform stakeholders about the 
construction of MGM Springfield casino and its economic contribution to the Commonwealth. Over the 
course of the casino’s construction, UMDI worked with the MGC and MGM Springfield to obtain data on 
the spending, employment, and wages related to the construction of MGM Springfield. These data are 
summarized here along with an estimate of the total economic impacts to the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts resulting from the casino construction. 
 
MGM Resorts International spent $573.3 million to build the MGM Springfield casino. This amount 
differs from the larger amount that is commonly reported in the press. The larger amount represents 
total investment of which construction is a component. The difference between investment and 
construction includes design fees; furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FF&E); operating supplies and 
equipment (OSE); license/application fees; and pre-opening expenses. 

Where were the construction dollars spent? 
 Two-thirds of the construction budget ($373.8M of $573.2M) went to firms based in 

Massachusetts. Half of that ($194.3M) (or a third of the total) remained in Hampden County. 

 Nearly $84 million went to firms based in the City of Springfield.  

 Of the remaining third that went out of state ($199.5M), about half went to firms in nearby 
Connecticut with the remainder spread across 16 other states and Canada. 

 About one-third of the total contract value went to firms that met at least one element of the 
diversity criteria. 

 
Table 1: Construction Contract Payments by MA County and Out of State ($M) 

Massachusetts County Payment Value Payment Share of Total Construction Budget 

Barnstable, Dukes, Nantucket $0 0% 

Berkshire County $0.2  <0.5% 

Bristol County $17.4  3% 

Essex County $11.0  2% 

Franklin County $0.1  <0.5% 

Hampden County $194.3  34% 

Hampshire County $2.3  <0.5% 

Middlesex County $26.3  5% 

Norfolk County $2.4  <0.5% 

Plymouth County $1.3  <0.5% 

Suffolk County $63.9  11% 

Worcester County $54.5  10% 

MA Total $373.8  65% 

Out of State $199.5  35% 

Total $573.3  100% 

Source: MGM Springfield and UMDI calculations 

http://www.donahue.umassp.edu/business-groups/economic-public-policy-research
http://www.umass.edu/seigma


Table 2: Summary of Contractor Diversity ($M) 

Diversity Category Amount Share 

Woman-, Minority-, or Veteran-Owned Business $204  36% 

Did Not Meet Diversity Criteria $369  64% 

Total $573  100% 

Source: MGM Springfield and UMDI calculations 

Where did construction workers reside and was it a diverse workforce?  
 Over two-thirds (2,963 of 4,249) of the construction workers were Massachusetts residents. 

Most of the remainder were from Connecticut.  

 In total, the most common place of residence was Hampden County, where 36 percent (1,524 of 
4,249) of the workers resided. Of this 36 percent, 509 were Springfield residents. 

 Workforce diversity statistics suggest that the MGM Springfield construction workforce largely 
reflects the composition of the populations from which they are drawn. 

 One-quarter of Massachusetts-resident construction workers employed during the construction 
of MGM Springfield were minorities, which is similar to the minority share of the statewide 
population. Overall, the construction workers were over 90 percent male and non-veteran.  

 In Springfield, the population is majority minority. Overall, the shares of White and minority 
MGM Springfield construction workers who were from Springfield are similar to their shares of 
the city’s population. Within the minority workers, Black MGM Springfield construction workers 
from Springfield were overrepresented and Hispanic MGM Springfield construction workers 
from Springfield were underrepresented compared to their shares of the Springfield population. 
See Figure 1 on the next page for the shares. 

 
Table 3: Construction Workers by MA County and Out of State 

Massachusetts County Worker Count Worker Share of Total 

Barnstable 2 0% 

Berkshire 109 2% 

Bristol 117 2% 

Essex 150 3% 

Franklin 167 3% 

Hampden 2,283 40% 

Hampshire 459 8% 

Middlesex 201 4% 

Norfolk 76 1% 

Plymouth 78 1% 

Suffolk 56 1% 

Worcester 403 7% 

MA Total 4,101 72% 

Out of State 1,585 28% 

Total 5,686 100% 

Source: MGM Springfield and UMDI calculations 



Figure 1: Race/Ethnicity of MGM Springfield Construction Workers in Springfield and Springfield’s 
Population 

 
Source: MGM Springfield, UMDI calculations, and American Community Survey 5yr 2013-2017 

What were the total statewide economic impacts of constructing MGM Springfield?  
 Increases in company revenues and employment drive larger changes in the economy.  

 Overall, total statewide economic activity (also known as output) increased by $849 million over 
the five-year construction period.  

 Net new economic activity (i.e., value added or gross state product) totaled $512 million.  

 About 1,000 jobs were created or supported by this economic activity. These jobs accrued $397 
million of income.  

 Every $2 of construction spending created $1 of additional activity in Massachusetts. Every $1 of 
compensation to construction workers created an additional $1.29 of income to others in 
Massachusetts. 

 
Table 4: Summary Statewide Economic Impacts ($M) 

Category Annual Average Cumulative 

Total Economic Impact $170 $849 

Net Economic Impact $102 $512 

Employment 1,050  N/A 

Income $79 $397 

Source: MGM Springfield, UMDI calculations, and Regional Economic Models, Inc. 
 

  

Hispanic
34%

White/ 
Other
38%

Black
27%

All Else
1%

SPRINGFIELD WORKERS

Hispanic
44%

White/ 
Other
35%

Black
19%

All Else
2%

SPRINGFIELD POPULATION



 
 

 
 

 

TO: Chair Judd-Stein, MGC Commissioners  

FROM: Jill Lacey Griffin  

CC: Catherine Blue, Edward R. Bedrosian  

DATE: September 16,  2019  

RE: Update on Upcoming Summit on Diversity in Construction 
 

Practical applications and proven strategies will be the focus of a “Summit on 
Diversity in Construction” presented by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
and partners on Tuesday, Oct. 8, beginning at 12:30 p.m. at Smith College in 
Northampton. The Conference is intended to focus on the construction industry 
in Central and Western MA which is under accessed by women and people of 
color. The event will feature diversity best practices from the construction of our 
Category 1 licensees MGM Springfield and Encore Boston Harbor along with other 
construction projects that have successfully been inclusive of women and people 
of color in the construction trades workforce and diverse business ownership. We 
will also showcase the “Build a Life” Campaign, a recruitment and outreach 
strategy launched by the Commission and its partners in 2017 designed to 
increase diversity in the union trades with a goal of increasing tradeswomen in 
the MA union building trades to 20% by the year 2020. 
 
 
Lt. Gov. Karyn Polito will give the keynote address at the summit, followed by 
panel discussions to include Vice President of Development and Construction for 
MGM Springfield, Brian Packer; Diversity Consultant to Encore Boston 
Harbor/Suffolk Construction, Shelley Webster; President of Building 
Pathways/Build A Life Campaign Board Member, Mary Vogel; New England 
Regional Council of Carpenters - Director of Strategic Partnerships, Lisa Clauson. 
Additional panelists include Worcester City Manager, Ed Augustus; and 
Compliance Analyst of the UMass Building Authority, Maggie Drouineaud and 
others. 
 



 
 

 
 

Program goals include inspiring Central and Western MA building owners and 
institutions to commit to build with a diverse workforce and contractor base; 
communicating that they can play a critical role in creating opportunity for 
women and people of color who want and need careers in the construction 
industry; Giving owners the steps/tools/people to connect with if they are 
interested in increasing diversity on their construction projects; An additional 
important goal is retaining the pool of women and people of color brought on for 
the MGM project – the industry will lose them if they are not kept employed in 
the industry. 
 
Invited guests include representatives  from: Higher and Secondary Education – 
Presidents, Vice Presidents of Finance, Facility Directors, Inclusion and Diversity 
Specialists, Government Relations Directors; Government – State and Local 
Officials, Municipal Managers, Legislators; Construction and Development – 
Owners, Project Managers, Construction Managers, Architects; Other – Hospitals, 
non-profit organizations, any institutions that engage in construction. 

Background 
The Massachusetts Gaming Commission oversaw two major construction projects 
that launched the careers of hundreds of minority tradespeople and 
tradeswomen statewide. One of the projects is said to have had the most 
tradeswomen on a single construction project in U.S. history. These projects also 
greatly expanded opportunities for workers of color, veterans, and MBE, WBE and 
VBE businesses and suppliers. Construction remains an industry under-accessed 
by women and people of color, particularly in central and western Massachusetts. 
Summit attendees can learn from the successes of other institutions, including 
casinos, several local colleges, public construction projects, and nonprofit 
organizations. Presentations will include best practices from the Northeast Center 
for Tradeswomen’s Equity. 
 
For more information, visit massgaming.com/news-events/community-
calendar/save-the-date-summit-on-diversity-in-construction  
 
 
 

http://massgaming.com/news-events/community-calendar/save-the-date-summit-on-diversity-in-construction
http://massgaming.com/news-events/community-calendar/save-the-date-summit-on-diversity-in-construction


 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 
 

Review of Policy Questions to be discussed by the Local Community Mitigation 
Advisory Committees and the Subcommittee on Community Mitigation Relative to 

The 2020 Community Mitigation Fund (“CMF”) Guidelines 
 

1. Should the Commission place an overall limit on grants for the 2020 CMF? 

Background:  Because MGM Springfield opened on August 24, 2018 and Encore Boston 
Harbor opened on June 23, 2019, the CMF will have significant additional funding in the 
near term.  In the 2019 Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines, the Commission 
determined that revenues generated by the facility in each Category 1 region would be 
allocated for awards in that gaming region, provided that slots related impacts are funded 
from all regions and provided that unused allocations revert back to statewide use after 
three years.  

2019 Results:  The Commission anticipated authorizing no more than $6.7 million out of 
the 2019 CMF.  The Commission awarded a total of $3,682,946.50 of new grant funding.  It 
also authorized $75,000 from a previously awarded reserve and $200,000 carryover from 
a prior year approved use (Tribal casino technical assistance) for an expended total of 
$15,874,524.85 of the original $17.5 million (placed into the CMF from a portion of the 
license fees).  In addition to the approximate $1.6 million in authorization available from 
the original $17.5 million CMF, MGM Springfield revenues resulted in the placement of 
approximately $1.65 million into the CMF by December 31, 2018.  Furthermore, 
approximately $2.3 million in additional funding was placed into the CMF in 2019 from 
fines issued by the Commission.   

2. Should the Commission place a per grant limit for 2020 CMF awards? 

Background:  As noted above, with both casinos now open and generating tax revenue 
there will be more available dollars for these awards.  Region A will have approximately 6 
months of revenue from Encore Boston Harbor and Region B will have a year of revenue. 

2019 Results:  The Guidelines set specific limits for grant requests $500,000 for Specific 
Impact Grants; $200,000 for Transportation Planning Grants; $300,000 for each Region A 
and B for Workforce Development; $50,000 Non-Transportation Planning and $200,000 
for Tribal Technical Assistance and $500,000 for Transit Project(s) of Regional Significance 
for each region.  However, the Commission reserved its ability to authorize funding 
beyond the amounts.  Communities have expressed an interest in more funding for some 

9/19/2019 
 



 

2 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

grants.  In 2018, certain applications involving multiple communities were allowed to 
request additional funding beyond the base funding limits.  

3. Should the Commission continue to place a limit on grants in each gaming region based on 
the projected tax revenues generated for the CMF by the gaming facility in that region? 

Background:  Both MGM Springfield and Encore Boston Harbor are now operational and 
will generate new funds into the CMF by the February 1, 2020 deadline.  If a limit on 
grants is established now based on revenue generated, only approximately 6 months’ 
worth of contributions into the fund would be available for Region A by the February 1, 
2020 application deadline.  Large scale projects may require more funding than one 
region may have available and require funding from federal and other state agencies.  In 
2019 Region A used $2,750,489 from its portion ($2,600,000) of the 2019 CMF 
allocation.  Region B used $1,132,458 from its $4,100,000.  Funding for the Region C 
SRPEDD grant of $200,000 would be split by region A and B as the Category 2 casino 
does not pay into the Community Mitigation Fund. 

2019 Results:  The 2019 CMF Guidelines stated that:  “[t]he Commission intends to 
allocate 2019 CMF funding based on need in the regions that reflects the proportion of 
funds paid into the Community Mitigation Fund from the taxes generated by the MGM 
Springfield or Encore Boston Harbor facilities.  This allocation takes into account 
mitigation needs outside Region A and Region B, and includes a method to utilize unspent 
allocations.   

For the 2019 year, the Commission plans to allocate the $5.2 million remaining CMF funds 
equally between the two regions, Region A and Region B, after accounting for grants that 
will be made for Category 2 impacts.  Thus, by way of example, if the Commission awards 
$200,000 for Category 2 impacts in 2019, $5 million would be available to be split equally 
between Region A and Region B (i.e. $2.5million for each region).  Please note that these 
Guidelines establish a maximum target of $500K for Category 2 impacts.  Therefore, for 
another example, at the Category 2 maximum, approximately $4.7 million would be 
available to be split between Region A and B ($5.2 million - $500K Category 2 impacts = 
$4.7 million ($2.35 million for Region A and $2.35 million for Region B)). 

In addition to the funds remaining in the account, as noted, it is expected that MGM 
Springfield will generate an additional $1.5 million by December 31, 2018.  It is the 
Commission’s intention to allocate these MGM Springfield generated funds to Region B.  
It is the Commission’s further intention that any unused funds allocated to each Category 
1 Region will be set aside for that Region for a period of three years.  After the three-year 
period, the funds shall be allocated back into a combined general fund for all regions and 
for Category 2 impacts.” 

4. Should the 2020 CMF continue to be used to support and leverage resources to help residents 
of the Springfield or Everett areas obtain their high school or work readiness credentials to be 
eligible for employment?  If so, at what level 

Background:  The Expanded Gaming Act places a priority on the hiring of the unemployed, 
underemployed, minority individuals, women and veterans at the gaming facilities.  It had 



 

3 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

been estimated that 21,000 individuals were on wait lists in MA seeking admission into 
Adult Basic Education Classes and English Learning language programs, with significant 
needs for resources in MA Gateway Cities like Springfield and Everett.  Both the union 
construction and the casino operational jobs require a high school diploma or equivalency. 
The 2019 CMF Guidelines did include a specific allocation for funding work readiness 
programs related to the gaming facilities.  Workforce training, economic development, and 
other job promotion activities are eligible activities under the state appropriated Gaming 
Economic Development Fund, which is funded through gaming taxes from Category 1 
facilities when they are operational.  

2019 Results:  The Guidelines allowed these applications.  Two workforce programs in 
Region A (totaling $513,400) and one in Region B (totaling $300,000) are being initiated.  
The Commission approved more funding than specified in the Guidelines, given the 
pressing need for such funding. 

5. Should the Commission allow funding to pay for a portion of the construction costs of 
transportation projects?  Should the Guidelines require collaboration with MassDOT in 
transportation planning grants or any construction? 
Background:  To date, the Commission has only authorized funding for the planning or 
design of transportation projects. 

6. Should the Commission authorize the use of funds for large transportation projects or 
economic development projects?  If so, what would be the limit per application and per 
region?  Should such grants require a dollar for dollar match (waivable by the 
Commission)?  There are several funding streams for gaming related needs of 
communities including, but not limited to, the Community Mitigation Fund and the 
Gaming Economic Development Fund.   

Background:  See the language for these two funds attached. 

7. How should the Commission approach issues that may arise in late 2019 resulting from 
the operations of the Category 1 casinos (public safety, hiring, education, business 
issues)?  

Background:  The Commission has not witnessed large scale potential impacts resulting 
from the Plainridge facility.  However, planning is necessary now to be able to evaluate 
mitigation applications involving any operational impacts at the full casino facilities.  It is 
unclear if some impacts from the Encore Boston Harbor and MGM Springfield facility 
will be fully understood by the February 1, 2020 application deadline.  

M.G.L. c. 23K §68 states that “funds may be expended from the Community Mitigation 
Fund, …including, but not limited to, the impact on local resources as a result of new 
housing construction and potential necessary changes to affordable housing laws, 
increased education costs and curriculum changes due to population changes in the 
region, development and maintenance of infrastructure related to increased population 
and utilization in the region and public safety impacts resulting from the facility and 
ways to address that impact.”  In regard to impacts on businesses, should the 



 

4 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

Commission now or in future years consider funding requests from communities to 
assist (e.g. through promotion activities) all businesses / large groups of businesses in 
close proximity to the gaming facility?  Will operational impacts from the two Category 1 
casinos become readily apparent and quantifiable by the application deadline? 

8. Should the Commission authorize partial reimbursement or reimbursement for police 
patrols as part of the 2020 Guidelines?  

Background:  In 2019 the Commission received one request for a grant for “late 
night/early morning peak days of week patrol mitigation …to prevent driving under the 
influence during the previously unanticipated hours (between 2:00 AM – 4:00 AM …) 
during which customers may leave the casino after consuming alcohol.” Because only 
grants for construction related impacts were authorized in Region A in 2019, this 
funding request was deemed ineligible for funding under the Guidelines.  However, 
since now casinos in both regions A and B are open, operational related impacts will be 
evaluated under the 2020 Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines.  The Commission 
would need to determine how requests for specific patrols (e.g. patrols between 2:00 
a.m. and 4:00 a.m.) and for general public safety requests will be evaluated. 

9. How should the Commission use the information received from the annual look back 
studies, traffic studies, housing studies and research studies that have not been conducted 
by the Commission in any determination of mitigation requests? 

Background:  Many studies and reports relative to Plainridge Park, MGM Springfield, and 
Encore Boston Harbor will be completed by the Commission’s research team in the near 
term.   More information on the status of the Commission’s research can be found at 
https://massgaming.com/about/research-agenda/.   In addition to the Commission’s 
research, other research mandated under surrounding community agreements will also 
soon be completed.  Further research mandated under applicable MEPA reviews will also be 
completed in the near term.    Individual communities and entities have also commissioned 
their own gaming related research.    

10. How should the status of Region C and current litigation involving the potential tribal casino 
impact the 2020 CMF Guidelines? 

Background:  It may be unlikely that communities in Region C will experience significant 
construction or operational impacts by February 1, 2020, the statutory CMF deadline.  
Communities have expressed the need for technical assistance funding to help evaluate 
potential impacts. 

2019 Results:  $200,000 of funding was set aside for use in Fiscal Year 2019 if there is a 
more clear determination on Region C / Tribal Casino status. 

11. Should the Commission require a dollar for dollar match for its CMF grants? 

Background:  The 2019 CMF Guidelines only required an in-kind match for Workforce 
Development applicants. 

https://massgaming.com/about/research-agenda/


 

5 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

2019 Results:  In-kind services or funds were required of the Workforce Development 
Projects and require the applicant to provide detail on in-kind services or workforce 
funds.  

12. Should the Commission extend the previously authorized reserves for the 2020 
Community Mitigation Fund program and allow communities to continue to access 
whatever portion of the original $100,000 that remains unexpended. 

Background:  Some communities have expended some or all of their reserves.  In Region 
A, 9 communities have allocated their entire reserve and 2 have not requested funding.  
In Region B, currently 6 have allocated their entire reserve, 1 has used a portion and 4 
have not requested funding.  For Category 2 communities, 3 have allocated their 
reserve, 2 have used a portion of their reserve and 1 has not requested any funding. 

13. Should the Commission continue to authorize more funding for non-transportation related 
planning for those communities that have expended their reserves?   

Background:  In 2017, communities could apply for transportation planning.  However, 
no general planning application (except for uses of reserve funds for planning) was 
authorized under the Guidelines.  In 2018 and 2019, the Commission authorized funding 
for non-transportation planning.  Some communities have fully utilized their reserves 
and thus cannot use reserve for additional planning. 

14. The Commission determined that communities are not eligible for reimbursement of 
administrative costs related to the preparation of Community Mitigation Fund applications.  
Workforce Program applications, due to the nature of the programs, are eligible for such 
costs.  

Background:  Payment of such costs was not allowed under the 2016 CMF Guidelines, which 
instead required an in-kind match by communities. 

2019 Results:  In the 2019 Guidelines, administrative costs were allowed for Workforce 
Pilot Program applications only. 

15. Should the Commission revisit its guideline regarding grants involving private parties? 

Background:  The 2016 Community Mitigation Fund (“CMF”) Guidelines specified that 
“[p]rivate non-governmental parties may not directly apply for Community Mitigation 
Funds.  However, governmental entities may apply to the Commission for funds to mitigate 
impacts to private parties provided that such funding is for a ‘public purpose’ and not for 
the direct benefit or maintenance of the private party.”  The 2016 CMF Guidelines also 
specified that the Commission did not anticipate awarding any grants involving private non-
governmental parties unless the applicant governmental entity, licensee, or both provided 
significant funds.  Questions about this guideline involve the difficulty of ensuring that 
funding requests are for a public purpose and that any awards would be consistent with the 
Commonwealth’s Constitution.  Further, the funding matching requirement also is 
potentially difficult. 



 

6 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

2019 Results:  The 2019 Guidelines stated that “[t]he Commission will not fund any 
applications for assistance to non-governmental entities.”   

16. Should the Commission continue to expressly authorize joint applications by 
communities?  

Background: In 2019 the Commission authorized Joint Transportation, Non-Transportation 
Planning and Transit Project(s) of Regional Significance applications.   

2019 Results:  During the CMF Review of applications by the Commission, it was 
requested that a similar incentive program be evaluated for joint Workforce Development 
Applications.  The Commission mentioned the benefit of one integrated whole workforce 
development program for each region and creating joint applications may ensure that 
there is no duplicity in the use of resources. 

17. Should communities be limited to only one (1) Specific Impact Grant? 

Background:  The 2019 Guidelines specified that Specific Impact Grants were limited to 
$500,000 and specified that only one application was allowed, subject to a waiver.  
There was no prohibition against requesting funding for multiple areas within the 
$500,000 limit. 

18. Are the same general analysis factors used in 2019 going to be used for 2020 evaluation?  
Understanding that there can be delays in implementation of some of the grants projects, 
and some communities anticipate yearly grant applications for completion of certain 
projects, should the Commission authorize unspent, unallocated funds which remain in 
one region to be moved to a general fund after a certain number of years? 

Background:  The Commission will evaluate any funding requests in the context of any 
host or surrounding community agreements.  Factors used by the Commission to 
evaluate grant applications may include but not be limited to:  

 A demonstration that the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility; 
 The significance of the impact to be remedied; 
 The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact; 
 The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure; 
 A demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party; 
 The significance of any matching funds for workforce development pilot program 

activities or planning efforts, including but not limited to the ability to compete for state 
or federal workforce, transportation or other funds; 

 Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award; 
 A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 

not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure;  
 A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 

by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant; and  



 

7 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

 The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation request. 

Supplemental Guidelines Used To Evaluate Workforce Development 
Applications 

 Does the application develop a pilot program that seeks to address any claimed 
impacts? 

 Does the proposal include a program in Region A or Region B that structures intentional 
connections among adult basic education, occupational training, and post-secondary 
education programs? 

 Does the proposal seek to assist low-skilled adults in obtaining education and career 
training to enable them to join the regional labor market?  

 Does the proposal seek to address the anticipated goals of the program (see pages 12 
and 13 of these Guidelines)?  

 Will the participants receive industry-recognized or academic credentials needed to 
work in the most in-demand casino –related occupations within the region? 

 A governmental entity applying for workforce development funds will also need to 
provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development project such as 
in-kind services or workforce development funds  

 Is the Applicant collaborating with others to provide a regional approach? 
 Does the Applicant address issues related to a gaming facility?  

Background:  The factors used in 2020 may need further refinement. 

  



 

8 
S:\CommMtgs\2019 meetings\September_26_19\4c) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund.docx 

Section 59: Gaming Economic Development Fund 
Section 2DDDD. There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a 
separate fund to be known as the Gaming Economic Development Fund. The fund shall be 
credited with revenues transferred to it from the Gaming Revenue Fund established in section 59 
of chapter 23K. Amounts credited to the fund shall be expended, subject to appropriation, to 
support economic development and job growth including, but not limited to: (1) workforce 
training, including transfers to the Workforce Competitiveness Trust Fund established in section 
2WWW of chapter 29; (2) tourism promotion, including regional tourism promotion agencies and 
cultural and recreational attraction promotion; (3) summer jobs; (4) the Massachusetts marketing 
partnership established in section 13A of chapter 23A; (5) higher education scholarships; (6) 
regional economic development initiatives; (7) support for small businesses, including small 
business lending; (8) green jobs promotion; (9) science, technology, engineering and 
mathematics career pipeline initiatives; and (10) agricultural development programs, including 
youth agricultural education. 

Section 61:  Community Mitigation Fund 

Section 61. (a) There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a 
separate fund to be known as the Community Mitigation Fund. The fund shall consist of monies 
transferred under section 59 and all other monies credited or transferred to the fund from any 
other fund or source. 

(b) The commission shall administer the fund and, without further appropriation, shall expend 
monies in the fund to assist the host community and surrounding communities in offsetting costs 
related to the construction and operation of a gaming establishment including, but not limited to, 
communities and water and sewer districts in the vicinity of a gaming establishment, local and 
regional education, transportation, infrastructure, housing, environmental issues and public 
safety, including the office of the county district attorney, police, fire and emergency services. 
The commission may, at its discretion, distribute funds to a governmental entity or district other 
than a single municipality in order to implement a mitigation measure that affects more than 1 
municipality; provided, however, that such entity or district shall submit a written request for 
funding in the same manner as a municipality would be required to submit such a request under 
subsection (c). 

(c) Parties requesting appropriations from the fund shall submit a written request for funding to 
the commission before February 1 of each year. The commission may hold a public hearing in 
the region of a gaming establishment to provide parties with the opportunity to provide further 
information about their request for funds and shall distribute funds to requesting parties based on 
demonstrated need. 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
FROM: Todd Grossman, Deputy General Counsel 
RE: Renewal of a gaming license    
DATE: September 12, 2019 

 
I. Introduction 

 
The two Category 1 gaming licenses awarded by the Commission are issued for a term of 15 
years. See G.L. c.23K, §19(b). The single Category 2 gaming license awarded by the 
Commission is valid for a term of 5 years. See G.L. c.23K, §20(f). Per the documents 
awarding the respective licenses, the term of the licenses began upon the Commission’s 
approval to commence operations of the gaming establishments. Chapter 23K includes some 
provisions relative to the renewal of these licenses at the expiration of the initial terms, but the 
Commission will have to develop and implement new regulations to effectively govern the 
renewal process. Prior to doing so, however, a number of broad policy questions should be 
discussed in order to lend guidance to the process. Some of those questions are outlined 
below. Prior to contemplating those questions though, it will be useful to review the relevant 
statutory provisions, as well as the approaches employed by other gaming jurisdictions. 
 

II. Statutory Renewal Provisions 
 
The governing provisions included in G.L. c.23K grant broad discretion to the Commission to 
develop a renewal process for the gaming licenses it issues. Aside from directing that the 
Commission develop such a process that includes some sort of renewal fee, the statutes do not 
themselves establish many requirements.  
 
The law requires the Commission to “establish procedures” for the renewal of the Category 1 
and Category 2 licenses. G.L. c.23K, §§19(b)1 and 20(f).2 There is no other indication in the 
law as to what form the process must take. The renewal processes for each category of license 
must, however, include the assessment of a renewal fee. See id. The renewal fees must be 

                                                        
1 G.L. c.23K, §19(b) provides: “The commission shall establish procedures for the renewal of a 
category 1 license, including a renewal fee, and submit to the clerks of the senate and house of 
representatives any legislative recommendations that may be necessary to implement those procedures, 
not less than 180 days before the expiration of the first license granted pursuant to this chapter.” 

 
2 G.L. c.23K, §20(f) provides: “The commission shall establish procedures for renewal and set the 
renewal fee no. Any renewal fees shall be deposited into the Gaming Revenue Fund.” 



2 
 

“based on the cost of fees associated with the evaluation of” each licensee . See G.L. c.23K, 
§§10(d)3 and 20(f). As for the Category 2 license, the law provides that the fee “shall not be 
less than $100,000.” G.L. c.23K, §20(f). There are otherwise no statutorily prescribed 
minimum or maximum renewal fees associated with the Category 1 licenses. All renewal fees 
“shall be deposited into the Gaming Revenue Fund.” G.L. c.23K, §§10(d) and 20(f).  
 
The only other reference in Chapter 23K to the renewal process is included in section 17(b) 
which mandates that “[a] gaming licensee's compliance with [ILEV] agreements shall be 
considered upon a gaming licensee's application for renewal of the gaming license.” 
 

III. Other jurisdictions 
 
Though each is unique, it may be helpful to consider the manner in which some of the other 
jurisdictions that allow expanded gaming address renewal or review of gaming licenses. This 
is a high level overview:  

 
New Jersey-  Casino licenses are issued for 5 year terms. After an initial grant, there is a 
resubmission, rather than renewal, process. This means that a full investigation into the 
entities and individuals as to their suitability as well as a full financial review of the 
operations is conducted, but if there are no issues of concern a hearing before the Casino 
Control Commission is not required. It is essentially a call-forward process, i.e. - the license 
continues unless the Division of Gaming Enforcement seeks to bring forth an issue for 
hearing. 
 
Nevada- Casino licenses in Nevada are not issued for any set period of time. Accordingly 
there is no formal renewal process; nor is there any formal periodic review process. However, 
gaming licensees and executives are required to appear before the Commission regularly for a 
variety of different approvals (e.g.-  financial audits, changes in employment, amendments to 
“Order of Registration”). This affords the Commission an opportunity to effectively maintain 
oversight of its licensees. 
 
Mississippi- Casino licenses are issued for a 3 year term.  A shorter license term can be 
imposed if there are concerns about the company, but generally all licenses are for 3 years.  
The commission may simply “continue” the license at its expiration if there has not been any 
“substantial changes” in the applicant’s information since initial licensure. However, at the 
end of a 3 year license period the commission does not typically “continue” the license but 

                                                        
3 G.L. c.23K, §10(d) provides: “The commission shall set any renewal fee for such license based on 
the cost of fees associated with the evaluation of a category 1 licensee under this chapter which shall 
be deposited into the Gaming Revenue Fund. Such renewal fee shall be exclusive of any subsequent 
licensing fees under this section.” 



3 
 

rather reissues the license for another 3 years if the applicant is found to be in good standing. 
There is frequently substantial change in a company over the course of three years. So when it 
comes time for re-licensure, a casino submits an application again on the same “Mississippi 
Addendum” form for an initial applicant and just updates its information. The 
review/investigation for a renewal is not quite as arduous as an initial application as the 
Commission already has a history of the company. However, updated financial information, 
changes in ownership, changes in officers, etc. are reviewed (officers and owners of a 
company get a suitability approval for 9 years, so if they are still with the company they do 
not have to be renewed every time the company does and only new officers or owners have to 
submit new fingerprint forms and be investigated). The information required to be submitted 
by the applicant is the same at the time of initial licensure and at renewal (including things 
like terms and conditions of outstanding loans or indebtedness, balance sheets for the 
preceding 3 years, and profit loss statements for at least 3 years).   
  
Supplementary information is also reviewed depending on the applicant. The Commission’s 
primary concerns involve things like whether the company still has sufficient capital to 
continue adequate operations in the state, and whether there are any active investigations or 
significant litigation involving the company.  The licensees are generally required to keep the 
Commission updated on significant information during the course of their license period, so 
there are not usually many surprises.   
 
Pennsylvania- Initially, casino operators were identified as Slot Machine Licensees and the 
initial term of their license was 1-year. Following that initial 1-year renewal term, all 
subsequent renewals were on a 3-year term. More recently, however, Pennsylvania’s General 
Assembly passed a gambling expansion bill signed into law in October 2017. One provision 
of that bill was to extend the license renewal term for all categories of licenses to 5 years. A 
few other characteristics of the Slot Machine License renewal process are the following: 

 
1. A renewal application must be submitted by the casino 180 days prior to 
the expiration of the license. 
2. Renewal application fees are to be included with the renewal application. 
3. Once the renewal application is deemed complete, a public input renewal 
hearing is scheduled in the municipality where the casino is located. This hearing 
includes testimony from casino management as well as any government officials, 
community groups and members of the public who register in advance to speak.  
There are time limits on all persons who wish to speak. 
4. Two or three months later, a license renewal hearing is held for one of the 
Board’s regularly scheduled public meetings. At this time, the casino makes a 
presentation and answers any questions from the Board members.  During this 
regularly scheduled public meeting, the Board will make a motion and take a vote 
on the renewal application.  



4 
 

 
Michigan- Casino licenses are subject to annual renewal. An abbreviated form of a 
business entity disclosure form and personal disclosure (including a net worth statement) 
for each individual qualifier are required. There is a $25,000 annual renewal fee. 
 
 

IV. Policy questions 
 

In order to effectively craft regulations governing the renewal process for gaming licenses, the 
Commission should first address some threshold policy questions. The answers to the 
following non-exhaustive list of questions will help shape the resulting regulations.   

  
1. What should the license renewal fee be? The initial license fees for the Category 1 and 

Category 2 licenses were $85 million and $25 million respectively. See G.L. c.23K, 
§§10(d) and 11(b). In setting the initial licensing fee, the Commission took a long view, 
and elected to set the fees at the statutory minimums (as opposed to setting up a bidding 
process or increasing the fee to a higher amount) in order to enable the licensee to put as 
many funds as feasible into the construction and operation of the respective gaming 
establishments.  
 

2. What will the term of the renewal be? The law clearly sets the initial terms of the Category 
1 and Category 2 gaming licenses as 15 years and 5 years, respectively. See G.L. c.23K, 
§§19(b) and 20(f)(“A category 1 license issued by the commission in any region shall be 
valid for an initial period of 15 years … .”  G.L. c.23K, §19(b); “A category 2 license 
issued pursuant to this chapter shall be for a period of 5 years.” G.L. c.23K, §20(f)). By its 
reference to the term as an “initial period of 15 years,” section 19(b) left open the question 
as to whether a term of renewal of a Category 1 gaming license would similarly be 
required to be 15 years. By contrast, the language applicable to the term of a Category 2 
license provides no such opening in that it makes clear that the license “shall be for a 
period of 5 years.”  G.L. c.23K, §20(f).   
 

3. What issues should the renewal process focus on? As part of the initial RFA-2 process, 
the Commission comprehensively reviewed and considered nearly every component of the 
construction and operation of each gaming establishment. While the Commission may 
elect not to engage in such a comprehensive review as part of the renewal process, it will 
have to determine which elements will be part of the renewal review. For example, it may 
include any or all of the following:   
• Review of compliance with existing conditions of gaming license; 
• Review of status and compliance with host community agreements; 
• Review of status and compliance with surrounding community agreements; 
• Review of status and compliance with ILEV agreements; 



5 
 

• Review of capital expenditure plan; 
• Review of suitability of individual qualifiers (filing of Multi-jurisdictional Personal 

History Disclosure Form and Massachusetts Supplement); 
• Review of suitability of entity qualifiers (filing of Business Entity Disclosure Form); 
• Review of existing conditions of gaming license and associated commitments and 

requirements including onsite and offsite mitigation; 
• Review of financial suitability (overall health, debt/equity ratio, debt obligations); and  
• Review of business ability to operate a successful gaming establishment. 
 

4. Are any amendments to G.L. c.23K needed in order to implement the renewal process? 
Pursuant to G.L. c.23K, §19(b), the Commission shall “submit to the clerks of the senate 
and house of representatives any legislative recommendations that may be necessary to 
implement those procedures, not less than 180 days before the expiration of the first 
license granted pursuant to this chapter.” This language appears in the section pertaining 
to the Category 1 gaming licenses, so does not seem to apply to the renewal of the 
Category 2 license. However, it provides an opening to make such recommendations in 
the near term if deemed helpful.   
 


	0) Cover Page 9-26-19
	09-26-19 - Commission Meeting Agenda - FINAL
	2a)09-12-2019 Meeting Minutes (Draft)
	3bi) MGM Gaming Beverage Amendment 9.26.2019
	3bii)VIP Lounge - Amended Gaming Beverage License Application Form (signed 9..._
	4a) AL - MGC Q2 Presentation September 26 2019 FIN
	5a) SEIGMA September 26 Meeting_Presentation 092019_Final
	Economic and Fiscal Research Agenda:�Major Activities and �Recent Springfield Research
	Goals of the Economic Research
	Analytical Framework�Economic and Fiscal Research
	Analytical Framework�Economic and Fiscal Research
	Analytical Framework�Economic and Fiscal Research
	Analytical Framework�Economic and Fiscal Research
	Phases of Economic Analysis
	Measuring Impacts Geographically
	Measuring Impacts Geographically
	Measuring Impacts Geographically
	Economic and Fiscal Research: �Springfield
	Economic and Fiscal Research: �Springfield
	ECONOMIC & fiscal IMPACTs:�Recent Springfield research
	Real Estate Impacts of the�MGM Springfield Casino
	Study Purpose & Scope
	Caveats
	Real Estate Impacts in Context 
	Single-Family Home Sales�before and after license was awarded
	Condominium Sales�before and after license was awarded
	Multi-Family Sales�before and after license was awarded
	Residential Impacts
	Main Findings: Home Sales�Recent increase in single-family home sales,�but consistent with broader trends
	Main Findings: Home Sales�Condominium sales flat
	Main Findings: Home Sales�Notable increase in multi-family home sales
	Main Findings: Home Sale Prices�MGM had little impact on�single-family home sale prices
	Main Findings:  Home Sale Prices�MGM had little impact�on condominium prices
	Main Findings:  Home Sales Prices�Prices for multi-family buildings rising,�following pre-award and regional trends
	Main Findings:  Rental Rates�Rents rose following announcement, �but consistent with area trends
	Rising rents
	Speculation
	Evictions and displacement
	Commercial Impacts
	Main Findings: Commercial and Industrial Buildings�Slight growth in the number �and size of commercial and industrial buildings
	Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial�Slight growth in the number �and size of commercial and industrial buildings
	Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial�Commercial vacancy rates have fallen,�in line with statewide and regional trends
	Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial�Little evidence of a sustained rise or drop in�office lease rates
	Main Findings:  Commercial and Industrial�Little evidence of a sustained rise or drop in�non-office commercial lease rates
	New businesses
	Increased foot traffic
	Vibrancy and quality of life
	Conclusions
	Conclusions
	Thank you!

	5aii) MGM Real Estate Report (final) (2)
	5b) MGM Construction Overview
	MGM Construction Overview: Spending, Employment, and Economic Impacts
	Property Background
	The Data
	Construction Components
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Workers and Wages
	H&SC Summary Hours and Compentation
	Slide Number 13
	Workers by H&SC
	Race/Ethnicity of Workers
	Gender of Workers
	Veteran Status
	Key Concepts for Economic Impacts
	Slide Number 19
	Summary of Employment Impacts
	New Economic Activity ($M)
	�
	Thank you!

	5bii) MGM Construction_Executive Summary_Final
	6b) Summit on Diversity in Construction 10.8.19
	7a) 2020 Policy Questions for Community Mitigation Fund
	8) Memo- renewal of gaming licenses (9 12 19)

